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I Definitions

Definitions

In this interim report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings.

Artall Culture Group

AUM

Board

Chairman

Chief Risk Officer

Company Law or PRC Company Law

Company, the Company or
Holly Futures

Controlling Shareholder

Corporate Governance Code

CSRC

CTA

Director(s)

Domestic Share(s)

end of Reporting Period

FOF

Group, the Group, us or We

2 2021 Interim Report

Artall Culture Group Company Limited (B/E3 b &£ B AR A F], formerly known
as Jiangsu Holly International Group Company Limited (T #k5A¥FFREEA
R 7)), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on
20 January 1999 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company’s Controlling
Shareholder

the amount of assets under management
the board of directors of the Company
the chairman of the Board

the chief risk officer of the Company

Company Law of the PRC K ZE A R HEFEIA FE)), as amended, supplemented
or otherwise modified from time to time

Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (GAXERERH AR A F]), a joint stock limited company
established in Jiangsu, the PRC under the laws of the PRC on 29 November
2012 and carrying on business in Hong Kong as “Holly Futures”, the H Shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

SOHO Holdings unless the context requires otherwise

The Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

China Securities Regulatory Commission (FEIEAEEEREE )

commodity trading advisor, a natural or legal person who can provide guidance
or advice on buying or selling futures and options contracts, or trade on behalf
of the natural or legal persons

director(s) of the Company

issued ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
which are subscribed for or credited as fully paid up in RMB

30 June 2021

a fund specially invested in other investment funds. It does not directly invest in
stocks or bonds. With its investment scope limited to other funds only, it holds
security assets such as stocks and bonds indirectly by holding other security
investment funds, which is a new type of fund that combines fund product
innovation with sales channel innovation

the Company and its subsidiaries



I Definitions

H Share(s)

High Hope Corporation

HK$ or Hong Kong dollars
Holly Capital

Holly Asset Management

Holly Corporation

Holly International Financial

Holly Su Industrial

Hong Kong
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Introducing Broker(s)

Jiangsu SASAC

Listing Date

Listing Rules

lot

Model Code

overseas listed foreign ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company with
a nominal value of RMB1.00 each listed on the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

Jiangsu High Hope International Group Corporation (T &(E BB EBL S H
R A7) (formerly known as Jiangsu High Hope Corporation (JT#[E & /%17 AR
7~ A])), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 13 October 1992
which was subsequently converted to a joint stock limited company in 1994

the lawful currency of Hong Kong

Holly Capital Management Co., Ltd. GA¥XEAEIRHRAA]), a limited liability
company established under the laws of the PRC on 25 June 2013 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

Holly International Asset Management Company Limited (formerly known as
Holly Su Asset Management Company Limited GLAE#EEEEBR AT )), a
company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability on 7
July 2016 and a wholly owned subsidiary of our Company, which is licensed to
carry on Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO, and changed its name in December 2019

Jiangsu Holly Corporation (T#R5A M) BFR 2 7)) (formerly known as Jiangsu
Crafts Import & Export Trading Group Co., Ltd. JT&& TEGEHASERNDE
[R727A])), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on
30 June 1994 and one of the promoters and a Shareholder of the Company

Holly International Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Holly Su
Futures (Hongkong) Co., Limited (GA8RHAEHBFR /A 7)), a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability on 20 October 2011 and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company which is licensed to carry on Type
1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated
activities under the SFO, and changed its name in December 2019

Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd. (L&A E X AR AT, a limited liability
company established under the laws of the PRC on 23 January 2011 and one of
the promoters and a Shareholder of the Company

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

a business partner of the Company who introduces clients to the Company for
commission

State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the Jiangsu
People’s Government (I#E AERNEEEEEEEEELZE®)

the date, being 30 December 2015, on which the H Shares were listed and from
which dealings therein were permitted to take place on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

the standardised quantity of futures as set out by the PRC Futures Exchanges,
and represents the minimum quantity of that futures that may be traded

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

2021 Interim Report 3
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Net Capital

PRC Futures Exchanges

PRC or China

Prospectus

R&D

Report

Reporting Period
RMB or Renminbi

SFO

Share(s)
Shareholder(s)

SOHO Holdings

Supervisor(s)

Straddling buy and sell positions

QFlIl
RQFII

RO

4 2021 Interim Report

equals net assets minus asset adjustment value plus liability adjustment value
minus the deposits which the clients fail to fully replenish minus/plus other
adjustment items recognised or approved by the CSRC

China Financial Futures Exchange (FEl € BiHIE X 5 A1), Dalian Commodity
Exchange (K 5h3Z 5 FM), Shanghai Futures Exchange (B8 & S FT) and
Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange (851 & & 32 5 Fr)

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this Report, excludes
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

the prospectus in relation to H Shares of the Company dated 16 December 2015
research and development

the interim report for 2021 of the Company

the six months ended 30 June 2021

the lawful currency of the PRC

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

Domestic Share(s) and H Share(s) of the Company
holder(s) of the Shares

Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (T#k & &=k & E AR A 7)) (formerly
known as Jiangsu Silk Group Company Limited (T# & %4 4AEEER A7), a
wholly state-owned limited liability company established under the laws of the
PRC on 29 April 1994, which is the Controlling Shareholder and one of the
promoters of the Company

supervisor(s) of the Company

a behavior of two parties to the transaction acting as sellers and buyers
respectively to issue a transaction entrustment order to securities or futures
brokers and complete the transaction in accordance with the agreed types of
transaction, price, quantity

Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor
RMB Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor

Responsible officer
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Company Profile

BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

NAME OF COMPANY

Chinese name: sSAZHIE RN AR A7) (a joint stock limited company established in Jiangsu, the PRC on 29 November
2012 under the PRC laws, and carrying on business in Hong Kong as “Holly Futures”)

Chinese abbreviation (in the PRC): A% HAE

English name: Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
BOARD

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Yong (Chairman)
Ms. Zhou Jiangiu
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xue Binghai
Mr. Shan Bing
Mr. Jiang Lin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Yuetang
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung
Mr. Huang Dechun

2021 Interim Report 5
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Special Committees of the Board

Audit Committee Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Xue Binghai
Mr. Huang Dechun

Remuneration Committee Mr. Huang Dechun (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yuetang
Mr. Shan Bing

Nomination Committee Mr. Zhou Yong (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Yuetang
Mr. Huang Dechun

Risk Management Committee Mr. Wang Yuetang (Chairman)
Mr. Xue Binghai

Ms. Zhou Jiangiu
Mr. Jiang Lin

3. SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Ms. Yu Hong (Chairlady of the Supervisory Committee)
Ms. Wang Jianying
Ms. Yao Aili

4. LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Ms. Zhou Jiangiu

5. REGISTERED CAPITAL

RMB907 million

6. QUALIFICATIONS FOR BUSINESSES IN CHINA

Commodity futures brokerage, financial futures brokerage, futures investment consulting, asset management, sales
of funds, trading participant for stock options

6 2021 Interim Report



II Company Profile

10.

11.

12.

13.

HEAD OFFICE IN CHINA

Registered address of the Company: No. 50 Zhonghua Road, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (postcode: 210001)
Office address of the Company: Holly Tower, No. 50 Zhonghua Road, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

(postcode: 210001)

Website of the Company: www.ftol.com.cn
Email address: zgb@ftol.com.cn

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
Secretary to the Board: Mr. Huang Haiging
Address: 6/F, Holly Tower, No. 50 Zhonghua Road, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (postcode: 210001)

Tel: 025-52278980
Email: huanghaiging@ftol.com.cn

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Huang Haiging and Ms. Leung Wing Han Sharon

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES OF THE COMPANY
Ms. Zhou Jiangiu and Mr. Huang Haiging

STATUTORY AUDIT INSTITUTIONS OF THE COMPANY

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants ({Ek P FIEHEI BT (R EBAE))
A Recognised Public Interest Entity Auditor under Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong Law: Chungs Lawyers
As to PRC Law: Shanghai AllBright Law Offices Nanjing

2021 Interim Report 7
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14. PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation
Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Hengfeng Bank Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd.

Bank of Nanjing Company Limited
China Everbright Bank Company Limited
Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Hangzhou Co., Ltd.

Bank of Shanghai Co., Ltd.

Hua Xia Bank Co., Limited

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd.

Wing Lung Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

15. H SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

16. STOCK CODE

03678

8 2021 Interim Report



II¥ Financial Summary

Financial Summary

Major accounting data and financial indicators

Unless otherwise specified, the accounting data and financial indicators contained in this interim report are prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance, financial
data are presented in whole figure. Difference exists in the mantissa between the total of some tables and the direct
addition of various values which is due to rounding of numbers.

Change in current period
as compared to

the prior period

Change in

RMB 0’000 amount Change
Operating income 77,778 63,898 13,880 22%
Total profit 6,043 5,710 333 6%
Net profit-attributable to shareholders of

the Company 4,530 4,359 171 4%
Net cash inflow from operating activities 28,891 66,199 -37,308 -56%
Earnings per share (RMB/share)
Basic earnings per share 0.0499 0.0481
Diluted earnings per share 0.0499 0.0481

Profitability indicators
Weighted average return on net assets (%) 2.73% 2.69%

Change in the end of
the current period
as compared to the

As of end of the prior year
31 December Change in

Scale indicators (RMB 07000) 2020 amount Change
Total assets 733,510 634,916 98,594 16%
Total liabilities 569,019 470,249 98,770 21%
Customers’ equity payable 508,689 428,784 79,904 19%
Equity attributable to shareholders of the

Company 164,491 164,667 -176 0%
Total share capital (0'000) 90,700 90,700

Net assets value per share attributable

to shareholders of the Company

(RMB per share) 1.81 1.82
Gearing ratio (%)t ! 27% 20%

Note 1: Gearing ratio = (Total liabilities — Customers’ equity payable)/(Total assets — Customers’ equity payable)

2021 Interim Report 9
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Net profit attributable Operating income

to shareholders (RMB100 million)
of the Company (RMB 10 million)
4.53

4.36
: I I

2019 2020 TH 2021 1H
2019 2020 TH 2021 1H

Gearing Ratio

Weighted average

return on net assets

2.69% 2.73%

1.31%

2019 2020 1H 2021 1H 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 30 June 2021

Scale indicators
(RMB100 million)

73.35

31 December 2019 31 December 2020 30 June 2021

I Total assets
B Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
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Il. Net Capital and relevant risk control indicators of

the Company

The Net Capital of the Company as at 30 June 2021 amounted to RMB795 million, representing a decrease of
RMB184 million as compared with RMB979 million as at the end of 2020. During the Reporting Period, various
risk control indicators of the Company including the Net Capital met the regulatory requirements in the PRC. (The
following table sets out the Net Capital and the major risk control indicators prepared by the Company in accordance
with the PRC Accounting Standards and the regulatory requirements in the PRC)

As of

30 June

2021

Net Capital (RMB million) 795

Net Capital/total risk capital reserves (%) 258%

Net Capital/net assets (%) 48%

Current assets/current liabilities (%) 520%

Total liabilities/net assets (%) 23%
Proprietary settlement reserve funds (RMB

million) 250

As of
31 December
202 QNote)

979
351%
59%
484 %
20%

377

Warning
level

36
120%
24%
120%
120%

Minimum/
Supervision
level

30
100%
20%
100%
150%

10

Note: according to the requirements of the “Notice on the Implementation of the Integrated Information System for the Supervision of Futures
Companies” issued by the Jiangsu Branch of the CSRC (Suzhengjian Ji Gou Zi [2021] No. 14), the Company made corresponding adjustments to

the opening net capital and other risk control indicators.
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IV Managem®ent Discussion and Analysis

Management Discussion and Analysis

(1)

12

Overall Operating Conditions

In the first half of 2021, the Group gave much thought to developing a suitable strategy to fuel its growth, and
satisfactory overall operating performance was achieved. As at 30 June 2021, total assets of the Group amounted to
RMB7,335 million, representing an increase of 16% as compared to the beginning of the Reporting Period. Net assets
attributable to the Group amounted to RMB1,645 million, representing a decrease of 0.11% as compared to the
beginning of the Reporting Period. Excluding the effect of dividends, net assets attributable to the Group amounted
to RMB1,690 million, representing an increase of 2.65% from the beginning of the Reporting Period. In the first
half of 2021, the Company achieved a 0.85% share in market turnover. Our operating income increased 22%
year-on-year; net profit increased 4% year-on-year; total profit increased 6% year-on-year; and the average daily
customer equity increased 32.71% year-on-year. As at the end of the period, customer equity increased 19% year-
on-year. Turnover from brokerage and brokerage transaction volume increased by 179.12% and 75.71% year-on-
year respectively. The Company was awarded the “Excellent Member Prize” (855 & 8 #%) and the “Market Progress
Award” (T1i5# 5 8%) by Shanghai Futures Exchange, the "Excellent Member in Market Growth” (fI5KEEFE
8) by Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange and the “Excellent Member Prize” ({855 & #¥) and the "Excellent Industrial
Service for Agricultural Product Award” by Dalian Commodity Exchange.

Analysis of Principal Businesses

The Group is mainly engaged in futures brokerage business, asset management business, commodity trading and
risk management business and financial assets investment, mainly including securities, funds, wealth management
products issued by banks, and asset management plans. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

Futures Brokerage Business

The futures brokerage business of the Company includes providing brokerage service in respect of the commodity
futures and financial futures available at all futures exchanges listing in the PRC and receiving certain percentage of
handling fees from clients. As of 30 June 2021, the Company had 45 branches, of which 20 were located in Jiangsu
Province and the remaining were mainly located in other economically developed cities, such as Beijing, Shanghai and
Shenzhen, covering all the financially developed areas and other major regions in the PRC.

2021 Interim Report



IV Management Discussion and Analysis

(2)

(3)

For the first half of 2021, the futures brokerage business of the Company was maintained at a fairly good level. As
of 30 June 2021, the Company’s client balance amounted to RMB5.087 billion, representing an increase of 19%
as compared to RMB4.288 billion as at the end of 2020. The turnover (bilateral statistics, the same below) from
brokerage of the Company amounted to RMB4,856.839 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 179.12% as
compared with RMB1,740.061 billion for the same period of 2020. The brokerage volume of the Company amounted
to 62,593,375 lots, representing an increase of 75.71% as compared to 35,622,854 lots for the same period of
2020, with a market share of 0.85%. The handling fees of the Group from futures brokerage business amounted to
RMB135 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 68% as compared with RMB80 million in the corresponding
period of 2020.

Asset management business

As of 30 June 2021, the Company’'s AUM amounted to RMB23.038 billion, representing an increase of 4.10%
compared to RMB22.131 billion as at the end of 2020 and is expected to remain in the top three in the futures
industry. The asset management business recorded a handling fee income of RMB6.2275 million, representing an
increase of 55% as compared to the same period of 2020. 13 new products were developed, representing a year-
on-year increase of 18.18%, of which 10 were collective products and 3 were one-to-one special account products,
which is much higher than the industry average, and there were 33 asset management products in total.

While promoting efficiency enhancement, the Company strives to cultivate new development advantages. We have
successfully cooperated with bank financial subsidiaries by focusing on industry hotspots and applying the” Stock
arbitrage + offline new stock” strategy with stable returns. The scale of active management products continued to
increase, of which the Holly Xique FOF Tranche 1 Asset Management Plan won the” Fund and Wealth Management
Jie Fu Award”.

Commodity trading and risk management business

In the first half of 2021, Holly Capital overcame various difficulties and maintained a stable team, achieving operating
revenue of RMB599 million from January to June, up 25.05% year-on-year, and total profit of RMB6.97 million.
With a stable team in both its spot and futures trading businesses, risk control was further improved. The over-the-
counter options business was developed steadily, with industrial customers accounting for over 50% and notional
principal amount of new transactions of RMB2.1 billion, representing an increase of 100% compared with that of
the corresponding period last year. With the stock options business in Shenzhen Stock Exchange officially launched,
the Company vigorously researched and promoted its options business so as to serve physical enterprises with the
exchange’s “enterprise risk management programme” policy.

The Central Government’s No. 1 document mentioned about “Insurance + Futures” for six consecutive years, and the
Company continued to serve the development of agriculture, rural areas and farmers and promote the revitalization
of villages with its “Insurance + Futures” project. The Company continued to carry out the Rubber “Insurance +
Futures” project in Mengla County of Yuannan Province, raised the insured volume from 1,500 tons last year to
3,300 tons, with a total premium subsidy of RMB2.805 million, which was more than twice the amount last year,
and applied for funding support of RMB1 million from the Shanghai government. As live hog futures were launched
in January 2021, the Company grasped the market opportunity by combining the “rural revitalization” strategy to
complete three live hog “Insurance + Futures” projects, two of which were launched in Zhenjiang and Taizhou of
Jiangsu Province, of which the payout rate for the Zhenjiang project reached 91%. As the first batch of live hog
“Insurance + Futures” projects in Jiangsu Province, they effectively protected live hog enterprises from the risk of
falling pork prices. Two previous national live hog decentralization pilot projects in poverty counties in Yunyang
County, Chongging and Zhecheng County, Henan Province were successfully established in May.
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IV Managemyént Discussion and Analysis

Financial assets investment

With an aim of optimising its capital operation, the Company invested in a variety of financial assets including
securities, funds, wealth management products issued by banks, trusts and asset management plans so as to make
effective capital allocation, facilitate the development of principal business and improve profitability while putting
risks under control.

In the first half of 2021, the Group achieved disposition and dividend gains of RMB309,800 from financial assets
investment business, representing a year-on-year decrease of 98.8% as compared to RMB25.7882 million for the
same period in 2020. This was mainly due to widening losses on futures and spot derivatives trading and a decline in
fund income in the first half of 2021.

Other Innovative Business

Upgrading the international business function structure

In the first half of 2021, the equity of Holly International Financial’s futures business grew by 12.04% year-on-year;
the assets of securities business grew by 29.68% year-on-year; and the fund management scale was HK$120 million,
which grew by 49.4% year-on-year. The Company continued to expand its margin financing for new subscription
business and integrated the Group's resources in order to provide overseas companies with asset allocation services.
Holly International Asset Management has completed the opening of RQFII account with the People’s Bank of China
and filing with the SAFE, and cooperated with China Construction Bank and Haitong International to complete the
opening and preparation of various capital accounts, securities accounts and trading authorisation.

Remarkable results in options business

The Company focused on the national strategy and responded to the call of the central government, continued to
serve the development of agriculture, rural areas and farmers and promote the revitalization of villages with “Insurance
+ Futures” projects. The Company continued to carry out the Rubber “Insurance + Futures” project in Mengla County
of Yuannan Province, raised the volume insured from 1,500 tons last year to 3,300 tons, with a total premium
subsidy of RMB2.805 million, which was more than twice the amount of last year, and applied for funding support
of RMB1 million from the Shanghai government. As live pig futures were launched in January 2021, the Company
grasped the market opportunity by combining the “rural revitalization” strategy to complete three live hog “Insurance
+ Futures” projects, two of which were launched in Zhenjiang and Taizhou of Jiangsu Province, with the payout
rate for the Zhenjiang project reaching 91%. As the first batch of live hog “Insurance + Futures” projects in Jiangsu
Province, they effectively protected live hog enterprises from the risk of falling pork prices. Two previous national live
hog decentralization pilot projects in poverty counties in Yunyang County, Chongqging and Zhecheng County, Henan
Province were successfully established in May.

Orderly promoting wealth management business

The Company further strengthened communication with the CSRC to optimally adjust the establishment plan of
public fund houses. The Company newly added 228 agency fund products, increasing the total number of agency
fund products to 1,334, with scale of fund sales of RMB70 million from January to June 2021. The Company screened
quality private equity fund managers and increased its own capital investment. On the premise of fully evaluating the
risks and benefits, the Company explored the potential investment opportunities and made a new breakthrough in
external investment income.
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IV. Outlook and Future Plans

n

Facing both opportunities and challenges, the Company will base on the new development stage, implement a new
development concept and construct a new development pattern to ensure the effective implementation of various
tasks such as reform and innovation, production and operation, management improvement and risk prevention in
accordance with the requirements of various work arrangements by sticking closely to its positioning in the financial
service industry of “accumulation of advantages, well-known in the industry and leader in the region”, and strive to
achieve basically mutual growth of total profit/average income of employees and the Company’s efficiency growth by
continuously meeting people’s anticipation for better living. The Company will focus on the following tasks.

Deepening the overall reform and building a long-term mechanism for high-
quality growth

Reform is the root of vitality. Relying on reform and innvoation, the Company will break the development bottlenecks,
integrate development advantages and enhance development momentum by insisting on putting transformation and
upgrading and quality and efficiency improvement in a more prominent position.

1. Reforms will be steadily and properly promoted. The Company will push ahead with the work of A-share IPO
and strive for a successful return to the A-share market. Taking the implementation of the Three-Year Plan for
Reform of State-owned enterprises as its focus, the Company will make precise efforts to overcome the pain
points, difficulties and blockages in the process of development. Various system reforms will be initiated to
establish and improve its remuneration allocation mechanism that reflects the characteristics of the financial
industry and is targeted at key positions, core teams and urgently needed high-level talents. We will explore
the common interests in the construction value chain to keep our workforce stable, prevent the loss of talents
and promote the joint development of employees and the enterprise.

2. Our construction of the cadre force will be comprehensively strengthened. We will give full play to the
role of “communication and mutual assistance” and “apprenticeship” and increase the training and use of
young talents to maintain new source of cadres. Through methods such as centralized training and targeted
recruitment, etc., a batch of multi-talented cadres will be cultivated and recruited. Leveraging the “five in
one"” strategy, we will accelerate the building of a professional team, make rapid response to market needs
and provide strong support for each business division. In accordance with the planning of the holding group,
the reform of professional managers will be carried out in a timely manner. The assessment and incentive
scheme will be improved and more market-oriented to create a good career development channel for
cadres and talents, and achieve the objective of "attracting talents with development, accessing talents with
performance, cultivating talents with work, and gathering talents with career”.

(I) Benchmarking with the industry to promote high-quality development of the

Company’s main business

1. Distinctive brokerage services will be created. Based on the two platforms of “online and offline”, we rely
on quality services to enhance customer loyalty. We leverage the online platform to realize the accurate
delivery of investment advisory services and financial products. We leverage the offline platform to provide
institutional clients and high net worth clients with wealth management advisory services based on broad
asset allocation and personalized and customized integrated financial services. Based on the “five in one”
real economy servicing model, we will improve the multi-level platform to strengthen business linkage. With
the “five in one” development strategy as the core, we will give full play to the functions of the product-
based business department and make use of the product-based business development mode to replace the
region-based mode as the core. We will establish a perfect business linkage mechanism among headquarters,
branches and sales departments. Through platform and systematization construction, we can optimize the
customer service system and provide tiered and graded services to our clients.
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2. Seeks for both quality and stability in asset management business. We will constantly enrich the types of
asset management products, and steadily launch derivatives, fixed income+ and FOF products. We will
capitalize on low-risk, stable-yield product, to expand business cooperation with commercial banks, securities
companies, fund houses, wealth management subsidiaries and other institutions. We will also enhance the
brand effect of Holly Asset Management by expanding the sales channels of the Company’s pool of products.
With quantitative hedging, low-risk arbitrage, hedging, multi-strategy FOF and IPOs as the entry point for
cooperation, the Company increases cooperation with large institutions such as commercial banks’ financial
subsidiaries, insurance institutions and the Group’s internal enterprises, striving to obtain more sufficient and
stable sources of entrusted funds. Focusing on research and development of CTA and arbitrage strategies,
the Company insists on training and recruiting talents to enhance its independent management capability and
build a quantitative trading platform with its own characteristics.

3. The risk management business strives to make new breakthroughs. The Company will vigorously develop
commodity dealers with futures risk management companies as the mainstay, meet the needs of individualized
risk management in the real economy, enhance the Company’s pricing and trading capabilities, and gradually
establish a risk management structure with pricing as the core. In terms of the futures and spot business, we
will continue to cultivate the industry chain and increase capital investment in those products of our futures
and spot business with stable operation to increase the total revenue by increasing the trading scale. At the
same time, it will provide customized risk management services based on the needs of industrial clients, and
increase profits through services. As for market making business, we will actively apply for the qualification
of market maker on commodities and financial options, increase the profit contribution of market making
business, so that the market making business will become the “corner stone” of Holly Capital’s profit
contribution. As for options business, we will introduce a new team to strive for further expansion of notional
principal size of the over-the-counter options business transaction, optimize trading strategies and increase
profitability. The Company will promote the linkage between agricultural insurance and financial instruments
such as credits, guarantees, futures and options, expand the scope of “Insurance + Futures” and explore the
“Contract farming + Insurance + Futures” model.

4. To seize new opportunities for the development of wealth management business. As the establishment plan
of Holly public fund company is optimally adjusted, we will further enhance the communication with the
CSRC to make sure that the establishment of the public fund company will be approved as soon as possible.
We will continue to expand the scale of agency sales of public funds, increase fund promotion and training,
and make efforts in fund display, recommendation and analysis. We will promote private placement agency
sales business, build a high-quality bond trading business framework to achieve a stable, safe and efficient
bond trading operation system. Meanwhile, on the premise of risk prevention and control, we will carry out
in-depth investment research and development and increase our investment.

5. To improve the comprehensive capabilities of cross-border services steadily. We will give full play to the
advantages of Holly International Financial’s overseas securities and asset management licenses, and work hard
on promoting the Holly International Financial brand. First is to continuously enrich the strength of overseas
teams, including introducing leaders and RO with rich market experience, focusing on strengthening Hong
Kong's local futures, securities, and asset management business team building, and vigorously cultivating an
elite marketing team with its own characteristics. Second is to make progress in various businesses. With the
establishment of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area team as a breakthrough point, we will
strengthen our main business and further improve the ability to serve major customers and apply to the SFC
for pilot operation of swap business. We will look for high-quality fund business partners, vigorously deploy
and market our fund products, and form linkages with the PRC asset management business. We will join
hands with Hong Kong licensed companies to develop IPO underwriting, sponsoring and bond underwriting
businesses.
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() Insisting on technological innovation to lay a solid foundation for steady and
long-term development

1. The construction of “Holly technology” will be promoted to a new stage. The Company proactively meets the
opportunities and challenges brought by the wave of digitalization, uses the Internet mindset and financial
technology to continuously explore the optimization and adjustment of business scenarios and establish a
big data platform. Through big data mining and analysis, we will truly understand the personalized needs
of investors and provide solutions that meet the needs of our clients. We will continue to push forward
management reforms based on gaps between customer feedback and customer satisfaction. We insist on
using informatization to promote enterprise transformation, and apply informatization to all aspects of
company operation, including improving the quality and efficiency of customer service, alerting capabilities
for compliance risk control, and enhancing the convenience of enterprise information circulation. Taking
advantage of the existing ultra-fast transaction facilities, we plan to further enhance customer transaction
experience.

2. The “R&D strength” will be promoted to a new stage. The Company adheres to market-oriented, customer-
centric business style, and will strengthen the construction of business units, increase the support of the
Financial Research Institute for customer development and services. We will strengthen applied research, further
transform research results into customer service, product service, and enhance the power to commercialize
the Company’s research and development results. The Company will strengthen its research capability in
advantageous industries, and fully explore and meet the needs of the real industries. Taking the establishment
of Guangzhou Futures Exchange and the promotion of launch of carbon futures as an opportunity, the
Company increases the research and layout of the market for new types of futures such as financial derivatives
and promote the development of green finance.

3. Our “risk control” work will be promoted to a new stage. Through system improvement, publicity training,
real-time monitoring, compliance review, etc., to carry out ex ante and ex post internal supervision of
the Company’s operation and management. We will adhere to the bottom line thinking to continuously
strengthen risk prevention and control capacity building from the system and technology. The Company
will strengthen the analysis of the management system of key areas and major segments, sort out and
identify compliance risk points in each business process and job responsibilities, examine and make remedy
for defects, and improve related management measures. Especially in the face of the current, complex and
severe market situation, we should consider potential risks more comprehensively, prepare response measures
more effectively, and control risks within a reasonable range. At the same time, we will further promote the
construction of legal enterprises, and advocate further integration of subsidiary risk management systems
and business operation management. Attention will be paid to strengthen corporate culture construction and
legal system publicity and education, so that the business philosophy of “legal compliance, honesty and self-
discipline” will be deeply rooted in the hearts of our people.

4. “Safe production” will be promoted to a new stage. The Company thoroughly implements the important
instructions of General Secretary Xi Jinping on epidemic prevention and control, firmly implements the
various prevention and control requirements of the holding group, further enhances risk awareness, insists
on scientific prevention and control, and implements various prevention and control measures in a strict and
rigorous manner. We will seriously fulfill the main responsibility of safety production, and ensure that safe
investment, safety training, basic management and emergency rescue are in place to ensure safe production.
From the weakest segment of safety supervision, we will shore up the weakness and check for vulnerabilities,
so as to constantly promote the innovative development of safe production.
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Working Capital, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

Profitability analysis

During the Reporting Period, the Company seized the opportunities of the industrial innovation and development
and gradually enhanced its comprehensive strength with its overall operation enjoying a good momentum. As of
30 June 2021, the Group achieved total operating income of RMB778 million, representing an increase of 22% as
compared with the same period of 2020. The net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to
RMB45.30 million, representing an increase of 4% as compared with the same period of 2020. The earnings per
Share amounted to RMB0.0499 and the weighted average return on net assets was 2.73%, representing a year-on-
year increase of 0.04 percentage point.

Asset structure and asset quality

As of 30 June 2021, the total assets of the Group amounted to RMB7,335 million, representing an increase of 16% as
compared with RMB6,349 million at the end of 2020; the total liabilities amounted to RMB5,690 million, representing
an increase of 21% as compared with RMB4,702 million at the end of 2020. Excluding the effect of dividends, net
assets attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB 1,690 million, representing an increase of 2.65%
from the beginning of the Reporting Period.

The asset structure remained stable while the quality and liquidity of assets were well maintained. The Group's total
assets recorded an increase as compared to the beginning of the Reporting Period, mainly due to the increase of
customers’ equity. As at 30 June 2021, the total assets of the Group comprises of current assets of RMB7,288 million
(accounting for 99.36%) and non-current assets of RMB47 million (accounting for 0.64%). Total assets mainly include
cash assets of RMB5,794 million (accounting for 78.99%), assets for investment of RMB1,118 million (accounting for
15.25%), receivables of RMB45 million (accounting for 0.61%), inventories of RMB46 million (accounting for 0.62%),
and other assets of RMB333 million (accounting for 4.54%).

As at 30 June 2021, the liabilities deducting customers’ equity amounted to RMB603 million, representing an increase
of 45% as compared with RMB415 million at the end of 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in the Group's long-term borrowings due to the purchase of office premises with mortgage loans, the increase in
bond repurchase business, and the increase in standard bill pledge business. The gearing ratio of the Group was
27%, representing an increase of 7 percentage point as compared with the end of 2020 (Note: gearing ratio = (total
liabilities — customers’ equity payable)/(total assets — customers’ equity payable)). The operating leverage was 1.37
times, representing an increase of 10% as compared with 1.25 times at the end of 2020 (Note: operating leverage =
(total assets — customers’ equity payable)/equity attributable to the Shareholders).

Liquidity level management
The Company places great emphasis on liquidity management based on the principle of “being comprehensive,
prudent and predictability” while focusing on the organic combination of the security, liquidity and profitability of

capital.

The liquidity monitoring index of the Company in each month throughout the first half of 2021 complied with the
regulatory requirements of the CSRC.
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(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Currency risk

Except for the proceeds from issuance of H Shares upon public offering by the Company and cash at bank, there is no
material currency risk for the Group as the majority of the business activities are within mainland China and settled
in RMB. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily Hong Kong dollars. As most of the proceeds from issuance
of H Shares upon public offering by the Company are converted into and used as RMB by the Company during the
Reporting Period and the remaining proceeds will be used according to business needs after the Reporting Period, the
currency risk is assessed to be low.

During the Reporting Period, no financial instruments were used for currency risk hedging purpose by the Group.

Cash flows
The net increase in cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB129 million in the first half of 2021.

Net cash generated from operating activities of the Group amounted to RMB289 million in the first half of 2021,
representing a year-on-year decrease of RMB373 million as compared with RMB662 million for the same period
in 2020; net cash generated from investing activities amounted to RMB-289 million in the first half of 2021,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB131 million as compared with the net cash generated from investing
activities amounting to RMB-419 million for the same period in 2020; net cash flow generated from financing
activities amounted to RMB131 million on the first half of 2021, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB63
million as compared with the net cash generated from financing activities amounting to RMB68 million for the
same period in 2020; net increase in cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB129 million in first half of 2021,
representing a year-on-year decrease of RMB186 million as compared with RMB315 million for the same period in
2020.

Significant investment

In order to enhance the Company’s image, strengthen corporate competitiveness and form a clustering effect, the
Company and Holly Capital purchased the first floor and 17th-22nd floors of Building A4 of Zijin Financial Center
(Financial City Phase II) as office buildings. The first floor has an area of 245.99 square meters, and each of the six
floors on 17th-22nd floors has an area of 1,901.43 square meters. The unit price is RMB24,000, and the total price
is RMB279,709,700. Among them, the Company purchased the 1st, 17th, 19th, 20th, 21st and 22nd floors at a
total price of RMB234,075,400. Holly Capital purchased the 18th floor at a total price of RMB45.6344 million. The
purchase was funded by internal resources and loan of the Company and Holly Capital. Among which, the total loan
amount is RMB139,854,800 at the interest rate of 4.5% per annum and with the term of the loan of five years. The
Company and Holly Capital pledged all the equity interest of the above-mentioned property to Nanjing Branch of
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. as a guarantee for the repayment of the principal and interest of the loan and all
other related expenses under the loan contract. In addition, the Company intended to purchase about 203 parking
spaces at a total price of not more than RMB41.00 million with the Company’s own funds.

Contingent liabilities

For details, please refer to Note XlI, 1 to the unaudited interim financial report of this Report.

Charges on assets

For details, please refer to V, (6) to the management discussion and analysis of this Report.
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Material Financing of the Company

Equity financing

During the Reporting Period, the Company has submitted application materials in respect of the A Share Offering,
including the A Share prospectus, to the CSRC, and has received a notice on 29 June 2021 that the CSRC has
accepted the application on 28 June 2021. For details, please refer to the circular dated 23 April 2021 and the poll
results announcement dated 14 May 2021 of the Company.

Debt financing

The Company did not conduct any debt financing during the Reporting Period.

Investments during the Reporting Period

Use of raised proceeds

As approved by CSRC Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2015] No. 1963, the Company was listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on 30 December 2015 and it issued 249,700,000 H Shares (including 227,000,000 H Shares
offered by the Company and 22,700,000 H Shares offered by the selling shareholders) under the global offering, with
an offer price of HK$2.43 per Share, raising total proceeds of approximately HK$607 million.

According to the use of proceeds from global offering as set out in the Prospectus, the Company intended to use
the proceeds for the following purposes: developing Hong Kong and global futures business and asset management
business; developing the commodity trading and risk management business; developing and strengthening the
existing futures brokerage business; purchasing information technology equipment and software; and as general
working capital of the Group.

The Company remitted the proceeds to the PRC after deducting listing expenses, social security transferred payment,
and expenses for developing the Hong Kong and global futures business, and exchanged them into RMB.

The Company held the 2018 annual general meeting on 6 June 2019 and passed to transfer the remaining fund of
HK$50 million which originally intended to be used for “developing and strengthening the existing futures brokerage
business” to “developing the Hong Kong and global futures business”. The change must be approved by the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange and the National Development and Reform Commission and other relevant
regulatory authorities before implementation. As of 30 June 2021, the Company has not obtained approval from the
relevant regulatory authorities for the above application for changing the use of raised proceeds.
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(I1) Use of raised proceeds in projects intended to be financed

As of 30 June 2021, the raised proceeds were utilised as follows, which were in line with the purposes set out in the

Prospectus:

The amount
of proceeds

available-for- The
use during the accumulated
Whether Reporting amount of
there were Period proceeds used Balance
Title of the projects changes in (HK$ in (HKS$ in (HKS in

intended to be financed

the project

ten thousand)

ten thousand)

ten thousand)

Developing the Hong Kong and global

futures business No 17,157 16,500 657
Developing asset management business No 13,404 12,495 909
Developing the commodity trading and risk

management business No 10,723 9,784 939
Developing and strengthening the existing

futures brokerage business* No 5,361 52 5,309
Purchasing IT equipment and software No 2,681 2,679 2
General working capital of the Group No 4,289 4,289 -
Total 53,615 45,799 7,816

*Note: Will be transferred to “developing the Hong Kong and global futures business” upon receipt of the regulatory approval.
In order to enhance the efficiency of the utilisation of the proceeds, as of 30 June 2021, the Company’s remaining
proceeds were deposited into large commercial banks as bank deposits. The Company intends to utilise the net

proceeds in the amount and usages as prescribed in the Prospectus and as amended in the 2018 annual general
meeting of the Company (subject to the regulatory approval) in due course in the second half of 2021 and 2022.

(1) Progress of investments by subsidiaries and joint stock companies

During the Reporting Period, there was no investment by subsidiaries and joint stock companies.

(IV) Future plans for significant investment and fixed assets

None.
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VIil.Share Option Scheme

The Company and its subsidiaries have no share option scheme.

IX. Acquisition or Disposal of Material Assets, External

22

Guarantee, Mortgage, Pledge and Material
Contingent Liabilities of the Group

During the Reporting Period, except for the matters described in V (6), (7), and (8) of the management discussion and
analysis of this report, there was neither acquisition, sale or replacement of the Group’s material assets or business
merger, nor any major off-balance-sheet items or contingent liabilities matters such as major external guarantee,
mortgage, pledge that may affect the Group’s financial position and operating results. The Group did not grant loans
to any entities.

Employees, Remuneration Policies and Training

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 644 employees.

The remuneration of the Company’s employees is composed of basic salaries, allowances, performance bonuses and
welfare. Basic salaries are a relatively fixed part of the remuneration and are the basic income of employees. As a
supplement to basic salaries, employees taking special posts and professionals are entitled to allowances. Performance
bonuses are distributed according to the results of performance evaluation in favour of the front-line employees with
outstanding performance. For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the total remuneration of employees, including
remuneration of Directors, amounted to approximately RMB85.8697 million. Details of which are set out in Note VI,
49 to the financial statement of this Report.

The Company provided employees with statutory welfare such as social insurance and housing provident fund
according to relevant national provisions. Moreover, it offered employees enterprise annuity, supplementary medical
insurance and other benefits to enhance their welfare.

In order to constantly improve the professional ability and quality of the Company’s executives, the Company
formulated corresponding training programs for all business lines and made various training plans for employees
at all levels. The Company provided operation and management personnel with training programs centring on
enhancing their understanding of the development of the futures industry, management theories and skills, strategic
thinking ability, operation management ability, etc.; and offered training programs focused on improving business
knowledge, product development and marketing skills and service abilities to employees of various business lines and
departments. Moreover, it encourages employees to self-study, take professional qualification examinations, etc. in
order to educate themselves and update their professional knowledge. Especially, it rewarded employees who had
obtained qualifications for futures investment analysis, fund practitioner and futures practitioner in Hong Kong.
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XI. Risk Management

()

(m

The risks which the Company faces in its business activities mainly include risk management, internal control risk,
professional conduct risk, market risk, credit risk and investment risk.

In the first half of 2021, the Company adopted effective measures to deal with the risks proactively, thereby
safeguarding the safety and high efficiency of the business activities.

Risk management and internal control risk

The Company relies on consistent application of management and internal control systems by relevant personnel
to manage risks. The said systems are used to identify, monitor and control a wide range of risks, including those
pertaining to the market, operations, credit and compliance. Some risk management methods used are based on
internally established control systems, observation and summary of past market behaviours, and standard industry
practices. These may not predict future risk exposure or identify unexpected or unforeseen risks occurring in the
process of business innovation and diversification development of the Company. Other risk management methods rely
on the assessment and analysis of information associated with market and operating conditions, but their assessment
and analysis may not be accurate. Taking factors such as changes in market conditions and regulatory policies into
consideration, if the Company cannot make timely adjustments and improvements to its risk management and
internal control policies and procedures in light of future futures market development and business expansion, its
business, financial condition and operating performance may be materially and adversely affected.

The Company’s risk management approach also relies on the control and supervision of the executive staff. As
errors and mistakes may be occurred in actual operation, despite the Company can identify potential risks, its
assessment of the risks involved and the corresponding measures to deal with them may not be fully effective. Due
to the Company’s large number of branches, it cannot guarantee that every employee will comply fully with its risk
management and internal control policies. The Company’s risk management and internal control policies do not
necessarily protect the Company from all risks, and in certain circumstance, this could potentially have a material
adverse impact on the business, financial condition and operating results of the Company.

Professional conduct risk

Professional conduct risk refers to any legal sanctions, prosecutions, litigation claims, penalties, financial loss as well
as damage to the reputation of the Company as a result of the failure to comply with the rules and regulations, the
requirements of supervisory authorities or agencies, the self-discipline code of conduct, or any guidelines concerning
the futures brokerage business of the Company. The major professional conduct risk concerns (i) the employees of
the Company and (ii) Introducing Brokers.

The professional conduct risk posed by employees includes managing customers’ assets, opening accounts and
trading on behalf of customers without their consent or authorization. The risk largely stems from the low integrity
level of individual staff members who cannot resist the temptation of the market, resulting in those staff members
managing customers’ finance in violation of rules and regulations, or opening accounts on their own accord to
trade. Currently, the Company is screening and shielding the trading terminals of the personnel’s computers through
technical measures to prevent staff members from accepting customers’ instructions in the business premises to
manage their assets on their behalf improperly and from opening accounts on their own accord to trade. Against the
professional conduct risk posed by staff members, the Company has begun the strengthening of the internal system
and established the mechanism of accountability. Through joint problem shooting by related departments, the risk of
staff members opening accounts to trade will be eliminated at source and at the same time, through strengthening
the training and education of staff members, their professional conduct awareness will become stronger, which will
avoid the occurrence of such risk.
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In relation to Introducing Brokers, the Company’s professional conduct risk comes from: (i) Introducing Brokers
concealing their identity of Introducing Brokers and representing to related customers that they are the employees
of the Company and do something in violation of the rules and regulations and (ii) Introducing Brokers infringing
customers’ interests, accepting instructions from customers privately to manage their finance and engaging in futures
trading without customers’ consent in order to earn more commission from futures trading.

In respect of the introductory brokerage business, the Company has strictly monitored the account opening
procedures, strengthened the management of futures brokerage contracts, and investors will be informed of their
rights and interests through re-visits and their signed confirmation of the Company’s bills. At the same time, the risk
posed by the intermediary business will be avoided through the continuous strengthening of the management and
risk education of the intermediaries and the strict enforcement of related rules and regulations and the intermediary
management system.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the possibility of loss or decrease in income resulting from keen competition in the investment
industry or change in the market such as changes in interest rates or economic cycle.

Firstly, owing to centralized dealings and continuous price fluctuations, it is possible for price fluctuations that build
up over a long period to occur in the futures market in a very short period of time. Secondly, the margin system
makes futures a highly leveraged financial derivative product. Thirdly, the futures market allows speculators to enter,
thus increasing further uncertainty and risk in the market.

Since there is a large number of futures companies, the price war of handling charges has become fierce year after
year for traditional brokerage business whose development prospect is not optimistic. Meanwhile, investors enter
the futures market without adequate investment experience and skills nor good risk control capability but simply
emphasise speculative trading and neglect risk control, or have to be forced to terminate trading as a result of their
own factors being influenced by the economic environment. The combined effect of various factors has resulted in
futures companies facing the material risk of customers incurring losses in trading.

To address this kind of risk, the risk control department of the Company, through close tracking of the market trend,
has monitored market fluctuations, reasonably adjusted investors’ margin standards, strengthened the monitoring
of risk indicators such as the change to position holding and the level of margin, adopted actions to liquidate the
customers’ position through raising the amount of margin timely and regulated investors’ trading behavior according
to relevant rules and regulations. The Company has also exerted greater force on monitoring the daily trading,
especially the unusual trading behaviour of less favoured commodities and contracts, discovered, reported and dealt
with straddling buy and sell positions in time and strengthened the education of customers to remind investors to
take risk management well so as to prevent the inherent risks to them as a result of their failure to understand the
related rules and weak risk prevention consciousness.

Credit Risk

When futures brokerage companies engage in futures trading on behalf of their customers, they would incur losses
if their customers are unable or refuse to fulfil their contractual obligations. There are two kinds of credit risk from
customers. The first one is the inability of corporate customers to fulfil their contractual obligations due to change
of legal persons, change in ownership, poor business performance and other force majeure events. The second kind
of credit risk comes from the turbulence in the futures market, resulting in great price fluctuations and also in some
customers not being able to fulfil their contractual obligations.

In order to control credit risk, the Company will control the account opening process strictly. The Company will assess
the identity and creditworthiness of each new customer, and the adequacy of the funds that they will be using in the
futures trading. The Company will also conduct necessary training and examinations to ensure that the customers
understand the risks involved in futures trading adequately and will provide them with training on transaction skills
so as to reduce the likelihood of a massive loss.
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Investment Risk

Investment risk refers to the risk of loss or decrease in the investment income of the Company resulting from the
investment in developing the businesses of the Company. Specifically, it refers to the following risks:

1. Investment target risk: It refers to the uncertainties in the growth and development of the investment target,
including but not limited to technical risk, operation risk and financial risk;

2. Investment analysis risk: It refers to the risk of loss resulting from incorrect or incomplete due diligence
conducted in an investment project;

3. Investment decision-making risk: It refers to the risk of loss resulting from an imperfect decision-making
process and bias before any decision-making;

4. Project management risk: It refers to the risk resulting from insufficient supervision or improper management
after investment and failure to discover and exercise control of the problems in an investment project in a
timely manner; and

5. Project exit risk: It refers to the risk resulting from exit from an investment project with losses or inability to
exit from an investment project.

The Company will formulate comprehensive procedures for the approval and supervision of investment projects
through authorities such as the asset management business investment decision committee, general manager
meetings, Board meetings, general meetings, in order to minimize investment risk. The Company will take reasonable
steps in carrying out investment and enter into comprehensive investment agreement to protect the legal rights of
the Company.

Constructing the Risk Management System of the
Company

The objective of risk management of the Company is to implement a comprehensive risk management system to
ensure the business operation complies with the relevant rules and regulations, and limit the risk related to the
business operation to a tolerable level, thereby maximizing the corporate value of the Company. The CSRC has rated
the Company the “Class A of the A Category” for the past twelve consecutive years since 2009 when the rating of
futures companies was first introduced.

Risk Management Principles

The Company values the importance of the risk management system, which is established to achieve the following
business goals:

1. Preventing operation, compliance, market and credit risks;
2. Ensuring the safety and integrity of the assets of the Company’ customers and the Company’s own assets;
3. Ensuring the reliability, completeness and timeliness of the business records, financial records and other

information of the Company; and

4. Enhancing the operation efficiency and the efficiency in future business development of the Company.
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The risk management and internal control system of the Company has been designed based on the following
principles:

1. Comprehensiveness: The Company has developed a comprehensive and unified risk management system
which covers the entire process of the Company’s business and the various processes of different departments
and individual employees permeating through decision-making, execution, supervision and evaluation.
Each department and individual employee must have a clearly defined role and responsibility in the risk
management process;

2. Sustainability: The Company takes the initiative in actively setting risk management objectives and
implementing risk management measures with proper supervision and evaluation on a sustainable basis;

3. Independency: The compliance and risk control department, the discipline inspection department, supervision
and audit department as well as the legal department operate independently from other departments in
inspecting, assessing and monitoring various risks applicable to the Company on a regular basis; and

4. Effectiveness: Risk management should be in proportion to the scale of the Company’s business, scope of
business as well as actual circumstances and unite with the efficacy of actual delivered results, so as to realize
the risk management objectives of the Company.

The Company has established an internal structure and designed the business process for the purpose of segregating

the powers of the decision-making department, the execution department and the inspection and evaluation
department and implemented check and balance among these departments.

Risk Management System

The organisation structure of risk management of the Company is illustrated below:

01
\//o

Board

0>

Chief
Risk Officer

<02>

Risk
Management Committee

08>

Specialists for risk
management of each
business department

There are four management levels in risk management of the Company, namely, the Board, the risk management
committee, the Chief Risk Officer and the specialists for risk management of each business department.
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The Board is responsible for setting the strategic objectives of risk management, fulfilling the values of risk
management, appointing and removing the Chief Risk Officer, evaluating and approving risk management policies,
ensuring the implementation of risk management systems and providing feedback on the effectiveness of risk
management systems.

The risk management committee of the Company is responsible for: (i) reviewing the risk management strategies of
the Company, including the goals, risk tolerance and plans for managing and resolving material risks; (ii) analyzing
and evaluating the risk profiles and the overall risk management of the Company; (iii) making suggestions and
proposals in enhancing risk management of the Company; and (iv) supervising the implementation of the risk control
system in the aspects of application of fund, marketing, operation and compliance. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the risk management committee of the Company has four members with an average of master or higher
degrees and one of them is a senior accountant. The risk management committee of the Company is led by Mr.
Wang Yuetang, who is one of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Chief Risk Officer of the Company is responsible for ensuring the effective implementation of the internal
policies of the Company and compliance with the business policy of the Company; evaluating and advising on the
risks and compliance by the management of the Company in and as regards to the major decisions making and main
business activities of the Company; inspecting and investigating possible regulatory violations and risk concerns in
the operation of the Company, reporting to the Board, the Shareholders and the regulatory authority independently
on any non-compliance and enhancing the risk management of the Company through training, inspection and
supervision. Mr. Qiu Xiangjun is the Chief Risk Officer and has approximately 14 years of experience of compliance
and risk control and management in the financial futures industry.

Specialists in each business department responsible for risk management shall be responsible for implementing the
risk management policies.
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Overview of Corporate Governance

Listed in Hong Kong and registered in Mainland China, the Company operated in strict compliance with laws,
regulations and normative documents in Hong Kong and Mainland China, and kept committed to maintaining
and improving its good social image. According to the Company Law, Securities Law of the PRC and other laws,
regulations and regulatory provisions, the Company has formed a corporate governance structure under which
the general meeting, the Board, Supervisory Committee, and the management have their powers segregated for
checks and balances and perform their respective duties, so as to ensure regulated operation of the Company. The
convening and voting procedures for general meetings and meetings of the Board and Supervisory Committee are
legal and valid; the information disclosed by the Company is true, accurate and complete and is disclosed in time;
management of investor relations is efficient and practical; and corporate governance is based on scientific, rigorous
and normative procedures.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

During the Reporting Period, the Company had complied with all code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code,
and had adopted most of the recommended best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code concerning the securities transactions by Directors and Supervisors. The
Company has also made specific inquiries to all the Directors and Supervisors for the compliance with Model Code.
All Directors and Supervisors confirmed that they completely observed the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for supervising the unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company or its securities that is likely possessed by its employees. During the Reporting Period, the Company did not

find any employee’s violation of the Model Code.

The Board will examine the Company’s corporate governance and its implementation from time to time so as to meet
the requirements of the Listing Rules and to protect the interest of the Shareholders.
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V.

VI.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors with appropriate
professional qualifications, or appropriate accounting or relevant financial management expertise in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company appointed a total of three independent non-executive Directors,
including Mr. Wang Yuetang, Mr. Lam Kai Yeung and Mr. Huang Dechun.

Audit Committee

Pursuant to the Board resolution passed on 19 May 2015, the Company has established the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) in accordance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules, with written terms of reference. The
written terms of reference of the Audit Committee were adopted in compliance with Code Provisions C.3.3 and C.3.7
of the Corporate Governance Code and are available on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. The main duties of the Audit Committee are: proposing to the Board the appointment and replacement of
external audit firms, supervising the implementation of the internal audit system, liaising between the internal audit
department and external auditors, reviewing financial information and related disclosures, and other duties conferred
by the Board.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee comprises three members, including two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (chairman) and Mr. Huang Dechun, as well as a non-executive
Director Mr. Xue Binghai.

On 25 August 2021, the Audit Committee reviewed and confirmed the interim results of the Group for the six

months ended 30 June 2021, the Report and the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 2021 prepared in accordance with the PRC GAAP.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Directors have confirmed their responsibility for preparing financial statements of the Company. The financial
information set out in this interim report is unaudited.
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Share capital

As of the date of this Report, the total share capital of the Company amounted to RMB907,000,000, divided into
907,000,000 Shares of RMB1.00 each.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information obtained by the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, during the Reporting
Period, the public float of the H Shares of the Company was approximately 26.62%, which was in compliance with
the relevant regulations of Rule 8.08 and Rule 13.32 of the Listing Rules.

Interim results

The interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021 were published on the websites of HKEx
news of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (http://www.ftol.com.cn) on 26
August 2021.

Interim dividend

The Board does not recommend to distribute interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

Purchase, sale and redemption of listed securities

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company.
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VI. Matters in relation to connected transactions

Connected transactions

0]

Connected transactions

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted its connected transactions in strict compliance with the
Listing Rules and the Administrative Measures on Connected Transactions. The connected transactions of
the Group were mainly entered into with the Controlling Shareholder, SOHO Holdings, and the substantial
shareholder, Holly Corporation, of the Company. See Note XI to the unaudited interim financial report of this
Report for information about other related party transactions. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of its connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions.

Connected persons

The Company has entered into certain transactions in the ordinary and usual course of business with the
following connected persons:

SOHO Holdings

SOHO Holdings, a state-owned enterprise wholly owned by Jiangsu SASAC, was established as a limited
liability company under the laws of the PRC in April 1994 and is one of the promoters of the Company. As at
the date of this Report, SOHO Holdings holds approximately 47.59% of equity interest in the Company, and
hence is a Controlling Shareholder of the Company.

SOHO Holdings is an investment holding company principally engaged in (i) financial and industrial investment,
authorized operation and management of state-owned assets; (ii) domestic and international trading; (iii)
property leasing; and (iv) production, R&D and sales of silk, textiles and garments.

Holly Corporation

Holly Corporation, one of the Company’s promoters, is a joint stock limited company established under the
laws of the PRC on 30 June 1994 and was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in September 1997 (stock
code: 600128). As at the date of this Report, Holly Corporation directly holds approximately 16.31% of the
equity interest of the Company and hence is a Substantial Shareholder of the Company.

Holly Corporation is principally engaged in (i) undertaking overseas engineering projects compatible with
its strength, size and performance, and overseas dispatch of labor to implement such overseas projects; (ii)
wholesale and mining of coal, wholesale of dangerous chemicals (specific projects to be operated pursuant
to the requirements of relevant license); (iii) wholesale and retail of pre-packaged foods and dairy products
(including infant formula milk powder) as well as class Il and Ill medical devices (excluding implant products,
in vitro reagents and plastic contact lenses); and (iv) industrial investment, domestic trade, self-operated and
commissioned import and export business for various commodities and technologies.
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() Continuing connected transactions

1. SOHO Financial Services Framework Agreement between the Group and SOHO Holdings

As the Original SOHO Financial Services Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2020 and
the Group continued to provide similar transactions contemplated under the Original SOHO Financial
Services Framework Agreement with SOHO Holdings, the Company entered into the New SOHO
Financial Services Framework Agreement with SOHO Holdings on 22 April 2021 (after trading hours of
the Stock Exchange). Pursuant to the agreement, the Group provided a variety of financial services to
SOHO Holdings and its subsidiaries, including futures brokerage services, asset management services
and commodity trading and risk management services. The annual cap for 2021 amounted to RMB2.60
million, with an actual transaction amount of RMB174.06 in the first half of 2021.

2. Holly Property Lease and Management Services Agreement between the Group and Holly Corporation

As the Original Holly Property Lease Agreement expired on 31 December 2020 and the Group
continued to lease the Property from Holly Corporation under the Existing Holly Property Lease
Agreement after 31 December 2020, the Company entered into the New Holly Property Lease
Agreement with Holly Corporation on 21 May 2021 (after trading hours of the Stock Exchange). The
annual cap for 2021 amounted to RMB6.644 million, with an actual transaction amount of RMB3.1628
million in the first half of 2021.
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The following table set out the annual caps for continuing connected transactions of the Group in
2021 and the actual transaction amounts for connected transactions of the Group in the first half of
2021. For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the continuing connected transactions of the Group
were aggregated as follows:

First half of 2021

Actual Amount Annual Cap
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

1 SOHO Financial Services Framework Agreement
Income generated from the provision of services from the
Group to SOHO Holdings and its subsidiaries 0.17 2,600

2 Holly Property Lease and Management Services
Agreement
Expenses incurred by leasing properties by the Group from
Holly Corporation 3,162.81 6,644

Vil.Interests and short positions of Directors, Supervisors
and chief executives in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations

As at 30 June 2021, based on the information available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company do not have any interests or short positions (i) which are
required to be notified the Company or the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions that are deemed to be interested in pursuant to relevant provisions
under the SFO), or (i) which are required to be entered into the register of the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or (iii) which are required to be notified the Company or the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as
defined under Part XV of the SFO).
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VIIl. Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders in
shares and underlying shares of the Company

As at 30 June 2021, to the knowledge of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief executives of the Company, the
interests or short positions of substantial shareholders (except the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the
Company) in Share or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant
to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which are required to be entered into the register pursuant to section
336 of the SFO are as follows:

Approximate Approximate
percentageto  percentage to

Number of total issued  relevant Share

Name of Shareholders Class of Shares Capacity Shares held Shares!" class®?

Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Domestic Shares Beneficial owner and 431,642,122 47.59% 65.67%
Group Co., Ltd.® interest in controlled (long position)

corporation

Jiangsu Holly Corporation Domestic Shares Beneficial owner 147,900,000 16.31% 22.50%
(long position)

Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Domestic Shares Beneficial owner 143,548,000 15.83% 21.84%
Co., Ltd. (long position)

Shenzhen Changhong Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 143,548,000 15.83% 21.84%
Investment Partnership corporation (long position)

(Limited Partnership)
(R EBRESHLE

(BRAR))Y
Shanghai Taihe Yitian Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 143,548,000 15.83% 21.84%
Investment Partnership corporation (long position)

(Limited Partnership)
(LBRABRRESHLE

(BRAR))Y
Zhongshan Yigao Investment Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 143,548,000 15.83% 21.84%
Development Co., Ltd. corporation (long position)
(P ERRAERERAR)Y
Huang Jieping®” Domestic Shares Interest in controlled 143,548,000 15.83% 21.84%
corporation (long position)
High Hope Corporation Domestic Shares Beneficial owner 63,930,134 7.05% 9.73%
(long position)
Xu Xiping H Shares Beneficial owner 15,234,000 1.68% 6.10%

(long position)
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VI Other Information

The calculation is based on the total number of 907,000,000 Shares in issue of the Company as at 30 June 2021.
The calculation is based on the 657,300,000 Domestic Shares in issue and 249,700,000 H Shares in issue of the Company as at 30 June 2021.

On 30 June 2021, Jiangsu SOHO Holding Group Co., Ltd. (i) directly held 275,456,777 Domestic Shares; (ii) was the beneficial owner of 24.02%
equity interests in Jiangsu Holly Corporation, which directly held 147,900,000 Domestic Shares of the Company; and (i) was the beneficial
owner of the entire equity interests of Artall Culture Group (deemed to be interested in the 8,285,345 Domestic Shares directly held by Jiangsu
Holly International Logistics Corporation). As disclosed in the 2020 annual report of Jiangsu Holly Corporation, SOHO Holdings is regarded as
the controlling shareholder of Jiangsu Holly Corporation under the relevant PRC laws. SOHO Holdings is therefore deemed to be interested in
the 147,900,000 Domestic Shares and 8,285,345 Domestic Shares directly held by Holly Corporation and Artall Culture Group, respectively.
Accordingly, SOHO Holdings directly and indirectly held equity interests in 431,642,122 Domestic Shares.

According to the current information available to the Company, on 30 June 2021, (i) Shenzhen Changhong Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (RYIEEEEEELE(EREE)) held 99% equity interests in Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd.; (ii) Shanghai Taihe Yitian
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (E/8%RA&BRIEEABRE(BIRAEFE)) held 99.71% equity interests in Shenzhen Changhong
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (RYIIE 61 E & B H(BRE %)), (i) Zhongshan Yigao Investment Development Co., Ltd. (1L
F R BREARDQT]) held 79.5% equity interests in Shanghai Taihe Yitian Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/%A B KIEE S
BEAERAE)); (iv) Ms. Huang Jieping was the beneficial owner of 100% equity interests in Zhongshan Yigao Investment Development Co.,
Ltd. (FIL S = EHERE AR A F]). Accordingly, under the SFO, each of Shenzhen Changhong Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (%
JIEBIREABLE(BRAE)), Shanghai Taihe Yitian Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (L/8FAZRIBREABLE(ERAE)),
Zhongshan Yigao Investment Development Co., Ltd. (F1L5&REEHEFRRAF) and Ms. Huang Jieping is deemed to be interested in the
143,548,000 Domestic Shares directly held by Holly Su Industrial.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company are not aware that, as at
30 June 2021, any other person (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company) had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or are required to be entered into the
register of the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, SOHO Holdings, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company, held
approximately 47.59% of the total issued Shares of the Company. SOHO Holdings was established in April 1994
with a registered capital of RMB2,000 million. It is a state-owned enterprise wholly-owned by Jiangsu SASAC. SOHO
Holdings is an investment holding company and its business scope includes finance, industrial investment, operation
and management of state-owned assets as authorized, domestic and international trade, property lease, and
manufacturing, R&D and sales of silk, textile and clothing.

2021 Interim Report 35



VI Other Iafétmation

IX. Material Litigations and Arbitrations

() Punishment and public censure against the Company during the Reporting
Period

None.
(I) Material litigations and arbitrations

(i) Material litigations and arbitrations occurring during the Reporting Period

None.

(ii) Material litigations and arbitrations concluded during the Reporting Period

1. In July 2016, the Company found that an employee (“Mr. A”) and his wife entered into personal
borrowing contracts with three customers under which the Company was listed as the guarantor
without being informed. Among them, cases of two customers (“Customer Y” and “Customer Z")
were concluded. The case of the third customer was dismissed by the People’s Court of Jinghai District
of Tianjin City (the “Jinghai Court”) in December 2016. On 25 May 2018, the customer filed two civil
lawsuits against Mr. A and his wife as well as the Company and Tianjin Gandaji E-Commerce Co., Ltd.
("Gandaji”) with the Jinghai Court. Subsequently, the plaintiff withdrew the lawsuit against Gandaji.

The claim of the first lawsuit includes requesting Mr. A and his wife to jointly repay the loan of
RMB3.712 million to the plaintiff and pay interest at the monthly rate of 2% based on the amount
of RMB3.712 million from 27 October 2016 to the date of the actual repayment of the loan and that
the Company shall be jointly and severally liable, with interest incurred as at 26 May 2018 amounted
to RMB1,410,560 and the total amount of the lawsuit of RMB5,122,560; litigation costs to be borne
by the defendants. The claim of the second lawsuit includes requesting Mr. A and his wife to jointly
repay the loan of RMB1.12 million to the plaintiff and pay interest at the monthly rate of 2% based on
the amount of RMB1 million from 27 October 2016 to the date of the actual repayment of the loan
and that the Company shall be jointly and severally liable, with interest incurred as at 26 May 2018
amounted to RMB380,000 and the total amount of the lawsuit of RMB1.5 million; litigation costs
to be borne by the defendants. On 15 December 2020, after the two cases were jointly heard, the
Company received the first instance civil judgment from the Jinghai Court, ruling that the defendants
Mr. A and his wife shall jointly repay the plaintiff’s loan principal and interest of RMB4.46 million
within five days from the effective date of the judgment and interest from 27 October 2016 to the
date of actual repayment of the loan (based on RMB4.34 million and calculated at a monthly interest
rate of 2%); the Company shall assume 50% of the debts which Mr. A and his wife cannot repay. On
28 December 2020, the Company submitted appeal application for the two cases to Jinghai Court. On
22 June 2021, the Company received the second instance civil judgment from the No. 2 Intermediate
People’s Court of Tianjin that the appeal was dismissed with the original judgment sustained.

On 30 June 2021, the Company paid compensation for the two cases totalling RMB4,701,890.00 to
the plaintiff and has fulfilled the payment obligation determined by the judgment of the two cases.
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Outstanding material litigations and arbitrations during the Reporting Period

(1

On 3 November 2017, the Beijing Futures Branch of the Company in Beijing received the summon
and related materials for two cases of Customer L and Customer M suing the Beijing Futures Branch
of the Company on dispute of the wealth management entrusted contract from the People’s Court of
Dongcheng District, Beijing. The two customers opened their futures accounts with the Company in
October 2005 and April 2007, respectively. The two petitions alleged that a former employee of the
Company promoted the wealth management products to them, and the Beijing Futures Branch carried
out the futures trading without their authorization and transferred the wealth management entrusted
funds in the clients’ account to the account of Beijing Futures Branch for non-compliance transaction,
resulting in a total loss of clients’ funds. They requested the court to make an order that the Beijing
Futures Branch returns the plaintiffs the deposits for wealth management of RMB1.5 million and
RMB8,352,495 together with interest, respectively, and the Company shall bear the cost of litigation.
After preliminary verification, the Company and the Beijing Futures Branch have never signed the
wealth management entrusted contract with the two customers, and the Company strictly complied
with regulatory requirements in relation to the futures industry that neither the Company nor its
branches have set up any futures account.

The dissent of jurisdiction for the two cases was discussed on 21 November and 14 December 2017,
respectively. On 15 January 2018, the Beijing Futures Branch received a civil ruling on dissent of
jurisdiction and the two cases were transferred to the jurisdiction of the No. 2 Intermediate People’s
Court of Beijing (“Beijing No. 2 Intermediate People’s Court”). On 6 November 2018, the Beijing
Futures Branch received a first instance ruling from Beijing No. 2 Intermediate People’s Court which
ruled that all the appeal of the two customers were dismissed and the appeal fees (already paid)
and appraisal costs for such cases were borne by two plaintiffs. On 26 December 2019, the Beijing
Futures Branch received a second instance civil ruling from the Beijing Municipal Higher People’s
Court, withdrawing the first instance ruling. The two cases were sent to Beijing No. 2 Intermediate
People’s Court for retrial. On 14 April 2021, the Beijing Futures Branch received the first-instance
civil jJudgment, stating that the Beijing Futures Branch shall compensate the two plaintiffs totalling
RMB1,969,920 within ten days from the effective date of the judgment. On 28 April 2021, the Beijing
Futures Branch submitted statements of appeal of the two cases to the court. The two cases are
currently being referred back to second instance trial.

On 29 April 2020, the Company received information from the People’s Court of Qixia District,
Nanjing, relating to a lawsuit initiated by the plaintiff suing an employee of the Company and the
Company’s tort liability dispute. The plaintiff alleged that the employee recommended a trading
platform to the plaintiff through a third party for transaction, resulting in the plaintiff’s investment
losses and handling fees totalling RMB5.689 million after the transaction. The plaintiff later
learned that the platform was not registered in China. The plaintiff believed that the employee had
committed fraud together with the Company, which constituted infringement. Judgement was
requested for the employee to compensate for investment losses of RMB4,002,240, and handling
fee of RMB1,686,713.6, totalling RMB5,688,953.6; the Company shall bear joint and several liability
for compensation; the two defendants shall bear litigation costs. After preliminary verification, the
plaintiff is not a domestic futures customer of the Company, nor is it an overseas futures customer
of the Company’s overseas subsidiary Holly International Financial Holdings Limited, and neither the
Company nor its overseas subsidiary has received funds from the plaintiff. Currently, the case is still in
the process of first instance trial.
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3. Holly Capital Shanghai Hongsu Economic and Trade Branch (“Holly Capital Shanghai Branch”) and a
company had a dispute over the purchase of purified terephthalic acid (PTA). Since that company did
not provide part of the goods after receiving payment, Holly Capital Shanghai Branch filed a lawsuit to
the People’s Court of Qinhuai District, Nanjing City, and the Court put the case on file on 23 December
2020. This case has been transferred to Jiangyin Municipal People’s Court for jurisdiction in accordance
with the spirit of the notice issued by Jiangsu Provincial Higher People’s court to intermediate people’s
courts throughout the province on 31 August 2020. The claims of the case are as follows: 1. Request
to confirm that the plaintiff has ordinary claims against the defendant in RMB10,713,048.00 with
interest (based on RMB10,713,048.00 and calculated at 1.5 times of the quoted interest rate of
the loan market from 11 June 2020 to the date of actual payment). 2. Order the defendant to bear
all the litigation costs, costs of preservation and other legal costs of the case. On 3 February 2021,
the Jiangyin Municipal People’s Court ruled to accept a bankruptcy and reorganization case of that
company, and on the same day appointed a law firm as the administrator of that company. On 7
July 2021, Holly Capital Shanghai Branch received the first-instance civil judgment, confirming that
Holly Capital Shanghai Branch has creditor’s rights to that company of RMB10,713,048 together
with interest. Holly Capital Shanghai Branch shall bear RMB1,078 for litigation costs and costs of
preservation, and that company shall bear RMB90,000. Neither party has lodged an appeal and the
first instance judgment was effective on 23 July 2021. On 14 July 2021, the adminstrator of that
company made a review opinion on the claims of Holly Capital Shanghai Branch with principal amount
of RMB10,713,048 and interest of RMB48,590.28 and the total claim amount was RMB10,761,638.28.

(iv)  Material litigations and arbitrations occurring after the Reporting Period

None.
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X. Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management during the Reporting Period

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, as at the end of the Reporting Period, save for the below, there is no
change in the biographical information of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company as
disclosed in the 2020 annual report of the Company.

1. The Company

None.

2. Holly Capital

On 13 April 2021, Sun Chaowang resigned as director and general manager of Holly Capital.

3. Holly International Financial

None.

4. Holly Asset

None.
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Review Report

XYZH/2021NJAA20143
To all shareholders of Holly Futures Co., Ltd.,

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Holly Futures Co., Ltd., (“Holly Futures” or the
“Company”) which comprises the consolidated and the parent company’s balance sheet as at 30 June 2021, the
consolidated and parent company income statement, cash flow statements and statement of changes in shareholders’
equity and notes to the financial report from January to June 2021. The management of Holly Futures is responsible for fair
presentation of the interim financial report. Our responsibility is to issue a report on the interim financial statements based
on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with “China Standard on Review No. 2101 — Engagements to Review Financial
Statements”. This Standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain limited assurance as to whether the
interim financial statements are free from material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of personnel of
the Company and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provide less assurance than an audit. We have not
performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the interim financial statements are
not presented fairly in accordance with “Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises” in all material respects, or incapable

of fairly reflecting consolidated and company financial position of Holly Futures as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated
and parent company financial performance and cash flows from January to June 2021.

Shine Wing Certified Public Accountants LLP Certified Public Accountants registered in the People’s Republic of China
Zhang Yuhu:

Beijing, China Certified Public Accountants registered in the People’s Republic of China
Luan Yongliang:

Date: 26 August 2021
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

30-Jun-21

31-Dec-20

Assets:

Monetary funds

Including: Futures margin deposits
Currency deposits receivable
Pledged deposits receivable
Settlement deposits receivable
Derivative financial assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Financial assets held under resale agreements
Financial investment:

Financial assets held for trading
Inventories

Long-term equity investments
Investment in futures membership
Fixed assets

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

3,047,652,959.80
2,812,063,079.78
2,689,540,102.09
56,540,160.00
20,000,000.00
2,898,843.19
145,545.28
24,641,736.63

1,102,139,819.73
45,524,770.20
11,444,631.41
1,816,040.00
14,105,236.12
13,599,861.46
1,365,654.19

4,338,231.65
299,348,408.86

2,894,295,423.20
2,660,162,679.92
2,131,088,863.50
64,396,384.00
20,000,000.00
6,219,924.42
6,841,752.75
36,060,100.00
7,853,000.00

1,014,876,858.36
48,676,714.04
11,431,418.75
1,820,820.00
15,406,337.98
18,898,649.52
1,857,065.39

8,228,720.18
61,209,766.78

Total assets

7,335,102,000.61

6,349,161,798.87
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

Item [\ o} {} 30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20

Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings VI, 18 9,658,965.78 2,052,060.00
Currency deposits payable VI, 19 5,054,168,979.33 4,247,090,138.08
Pledged deposits payable VI, 20 32,716,800.00 40,750,944.00
Financial liabilities held for trading Vi, 21 85,776,771.44
Derivative financial liabilities VI, 5 7,724,017.28 7,594,514.81
Financial assets sold under agreements to repurchase Vi, 22 33,939,305.19 35,819,204.28
Futures risk reserve VI, 23 145,642,801.50 140,221,598.23
Futures investors protection funds VI, 24 291,411.86 369,776.02
Employee benefits payable VI, 25 20,038,748.00 26,279,433.60
Taxes payable VI, 26 14,366,842.45 28,658,451.44
Trade Payable Vi, 27 - 7,373,441.99
Contract liabilities VI, 28 993,773.90 1,859,630.01
Other payables VI, 29 137,721,014.47 140,609,535.53
Estimated liabilities VI, 30 1,969,920.97 4,467,575.89
Long-term borrowings Vi, 31 131,211,653.30
Lease liabilities VI, 32 13,972,334.09 19,347,767.49

Deferred income tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

30-Jun-21

31-Dec-20

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Capital reserve
Less: Treasury shares
Other comprehensive income
Surplus reserve
General risk reserve
Retained earnings
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent company
Minority interests

Vi, 33
VI, 34

Vi, 35
VI, 36
Vi, 37
VI, 38

907,000,000.00
533,124,529.52

-5,031,590.30
58,426,314.46
84,305,891.83
67,083,515.54
1,644,908,661.05

907,000,000.00
533,124,529.52

-3,692,964.07
58,426,314.46
84,305,891.83
67,503,955.76
1,646,667,727.50

Total owners’ equity

1,644,908,661.05

1,646,667,727.50

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

7,335,102,000.61

6,349,161,798.87

Zhou Jianqiu
Legal Representative:

Zhou Jianqiu

The person in charge of accounting affairs:

Chen Rongping

The head of the accounting department:
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

Item [\ o} {} 30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Assets:
Monetary funds 2,940,436,958.48 2,833,195,961.37
Including: Futures margin deposits 2,787,321,781.48 2,644,187,524.11
Currency deposits receivable 2,643,254,909.23 2,080,281,631.24
Pledged deposits receivable 56,540,160.00 64,396,384.00
Settlement deposits receivable 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Derivative financial assets
Trade receivables
Other receivables 10,101,524.29 11,855,879.63
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 7,853,000.00
Financial investment:
Financial assets held for trading 910,305,559.26 877,206,629.58
Inventories
Long-term equity investments XVI, 1 407,686,711.22 407,673,498.56

Investment in futures membership
Fixed assets

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

1,400,000.00
13,726,429.19
11,140,220.08
866,406.19

1,036,847.93
240,754,126.69

1,400,000.00
14,930,892.15
15,586,598.97
1,352,081.39

5,037,888.73
51,250,553.33

Total assets

7,257,249,852.56

6,392,020,998.95
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

30-Jun-21

31-Dec-20

Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings
Currency deposits payable
Pledged deposits payable
Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivative financial liabilities
Financial assets sold under agreements to repurchase
Futures risk reserve
Futures investors protection funds payable
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Trade Payable
Contract liabilities
Other payables
Estimated liabilites
Long-term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilites
Other liabilites

5,165,870,223.11
56,540,160.00

33,939,305.19
145,642,801.50
291,411.86
19,944,651.23
3,208,929.53

58,342,357.17
1,969,920.97
109,508,255.92
11,485,615.37

4,347,104,746.35
64,396,384.00

34,197,000.00
140,221,598.23
369,776.02
25,612,318.28
21,588,141.97

84,740,615.66
4,467,575.89

15,994,832.46

Total liabilites

5,606,743,631.85

4,738,692,988.86
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

Item Note

30-Jun-21

31-Dec-20

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Capital reserve
Less: Treasury shares
Other comprehensive income
Surplus reserve
General risk reserve
Retained earnings

907,000,000.00
526,722,489.33

67.87
58,426,314.46
84,305,891.83
74,051,457.22

907,000,000.00
526,722,489.33

-371,801.28
58,426,314.46
84,305,891.83
77,245,115.75

Total equity attributed to owners

1,650,506,220.71

1,653,328,010.09

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

7,257,249,852.56

6,392,020,998.95

Zhou Jianqiu
Legal Representative:

Zhou Jianqiu
The person in charge of accounting affairs:
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Chen Rongping

The head of the accounting department:



Consolidated Income Statement

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

January-June 2021

January-June 2020

Total income from operation

777,776,964.49

638,980,591.91

Net fee and commission income VI, 39 141,345,295.32 84,480,596.74
Including: Net fee income from brokerage operations 135,117,839.40 80,459,932.44
Nee fee income from assets management
operations 6,227,455.92 4,020,664.30
Net interest income VI, 40 38,426,229.11 41,759,666.14
Including: interest income 38,874,154.41 42,124,729.06
Interest expense 447,925.30 365,062.92
Investment gain (loss denoted by*”-") VI, 41 323,058.74 25,051,176.07
Including: investment gain of assoicate and joint venture 13,221.42 -736,982.63
Derecognised income of financial assets measured at
amortised cost (loss denoted by“-")
Other income VI, 42 3,178,866.31 262,040.52
Gains on change in fair value(loss denoted by“-") VI, 43 7,428,358.37 19,013,676.21
Exchange gains(loss denoted by“-") Vi, 44 -979,760.16 1,213,026.92
Income from other business activites VI, 45 588,187,600.92 467,260,707.40
Asset disposal gain (loss denoted by “-") VI, 46 -132,684.12 -60,298.09
Il. Total operating expense 715,590,657.22 581,225,289.02
Appropriation for futures risk reserve VI, 47 5,421,203.27 3,356,295.31
Taxes and surcharges VI, 48 1,188,411.77 564,101.75
General and administrative expenses VI, 49 128,550,214.97 115,280,906.91
Credit impairment loss VI, 50 -681,117.57
Other assets impairment loss
Other general expenses VI, 51 581,111,944.78 462,023,985.05
1l. Profit from operations (loss denoted by “-") 62,186,307.27 57,755,302.89
Add: Non-operating income VI, 52 538,581.07 432,045.29
Less: Non-operating expenses VI, 53 2,298,991.62 1,085,711.19
IV. Total profit (loss denoted by “-") 60,425,896.72 57,101,636.99
Less: Income tax expense VI, 54 15,124,459.03 13,513,932.86

Net profit (loss denoted by “-")
(I) Classification by continuity of operations
1. Net profit of operation on a going concern basis
(Net loss denoted by “-")
2. Net profit of operation on a terminated
operation (Net loss denoted by “-")
(Il) Classification by ownership
1. Net income attributable to owners of the parent
company (Net loss denoted by “-")
2. Profit and loss of minority shareholders
(Net loss denoted by “-")

45,301,437.69

45,301,437.69

45,301,437.69

43,587,704.13

43,587,704.13

43,587,704.13
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Consolidated Income Statement (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

January-June 2021

January-June 2020

VI. Other comperehensive income, net of tax
Net comprehensive income after tax attributable to
owners of the parent company
(I) Other comprehensive income that cannot be
reclassified into profits/losses
1. Changes arising from re-measurement of defined
benefit plan
2. Other comprehensive income that cannot be
reclassified into profits/losses under the equity

method

3. Changes in fair value of other equity instruments
investment

4. Change in fair value of the Enterprise’s own
credit risk

5. Others

(I) Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified
into profit or loss
1. Other comprehensive income that can be
reclassified into profit or loss under the equity
method
2. Change in fair value of other debt investments
3. Financial assets reclassified into other
comprehensive income
4. Reserve for cash flow hedging
5. Exchange rate differences of financial statements
denominated in foreign currency
6. Others
Net comprehensive income after tax attributable to
minority shareholders

-1,710,504.14

-1,710,504.14

-8.76

-1,710,495.38

3,301,680.41

3,301,680.41

131,626.75

3,170,053.66

VIl.Total comprehensive income
() Total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the parent
(Il) Total comprehensive income attributable to minority
shareholders

43,590,933.55

43,590,933.55

46,889,384.54

46,889,384.54

VIll.LEarnings per share:
(1) Basic searnings per share
(2) Diluted earning per share

0.0499
0.0499

0.0481
0.0481

Zhou Jianqiu Zhou Jianqiu

Legal Representative: The person in charge of accounting affairs:
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Chen Rongping

The head of the accounting department:



Income Statement of the Parent Company

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

January-June 2021

January-June 2020

Total income from operation

Net fee and commission income

Including: Net fee income from brokerage operations
Net fee income from assets management

operations

Net interest income

Including: interest income
Interest expense

Investment gain(loss denoted by*”-")

Including: investment gain of assoicate and joint venture

Derecognised income of financial assets measured at

amortised cost (loss denoted by“-")

Other income

Gains on change in fair value(loss denoted by“-")

Exchange gains(loss denoted by“-")

Income from other business activites

Asset disposal gain (loss denoted by “-")

XVI, 2

XVI, 3

XVI, 4

XVI, 5

175,811,469.97
115,015,811.60
108,465,997.42

6,549,814.18
37,993,960.96
38,441,886.26
447,925.30
15,614,594.83
13,221.42

555,461.35
7,027,445.75
-806,764.23
543,643.83
-132,684.12

156,601,935.87
70,802,390.96
66,501,577.63

4,300,813.33
41,467,717.69
41,832,780.61
365,062.92
19,190,753.15
-736,982.63

262,040.52
22,453,643.19
1,636,631.85
849,056.60
-60,298.09

Total operating expense
Appropriation for futures risk reserve
Taxes and surcharges

General and administrative expenses
Credit impairment loss

Other assets impairment loss

Other general expenses

118,132,582.35
5,421,203.27
743,169.53
111,910,297.75
57,911.80

100,410,095.30
3,356,295.31
381,934.49
96,671,865.50

Profit from operations (loss denoted by “-")
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

57,678,887.62
458,603.74
2,248,991.62

56,191,840.57
407,723.62
1,073,480.24

IV. Total profit (loss denoted by “-")

Less: Income tax expense

55,888,499.74
13,360,280.36

55,526,083.95
14,071,325.31

V.

Net profit (loss denoted by “-")

(I) Net profit of operation on a going concern basis
(Net loss denoted by “-")

(Il) Net profit of operation on a terminated operation
(Net loss denoted by “-")

42,528,219.38

42,528,219.38

41,454,758.64

41,454,758.64
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[ncome Statement of the Parent Company (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

Item Note

January-June 2021

January-June 2020

VI. Other comperehensive income, net of tax
(I) Other comprehensive income that cannot be
reclassified into profits/losses
1. Changes arising from re-measurement of defined
benefit plan
2. Other comprehensive income that cannot be
reclassified into profits/losses under the equity

method

3. Changes in fair value of other equity instruments
investment

4. Change in fair value of the Enterprise’s own
credit risk

5. Others

(I) Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified

into profit or loss

1. Other comprehensive income that can be
reclassified into profit or loss under the equity
method

2. Change in fair value of other debt investments

3. Financial assets reclassified into other
comprehensive income

4. Reserve for cash flow hedging

5. Exchange rate differences of financial statements
denominated in foreign currency

6. Others

-8.76

-8.76

-8.76

131,626.75

131,626.75

131,626.75

VII. Total comprehensive income

42,528,210.62

41,586,385.39

Zhou Jianqiu Zhou Jianqiu

Legal Representative: The person in charge of accounting affairs:
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Chen Rongping

The head of the accounting department:



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

January-June 2021

January-June 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of
services

Cash received from interest, fees and commissions

Net decrease in currency deposits receivable and
pledged deposits receivable

Net increase in currency deposits payable and pledged
deposits payable

Net decrease in restricted monetary funds

Net decrease in term deposits with original maturity
over three months

Cash received from other operating activities VI, 55

665,802,761.18
174,878,552.48

799,044,697.25

93,209,010.57

536,083,883.84
108,263,940.70

2,380,636,932.57

40,638,904.35

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

1,732,935,021.48

3,065,623,661.46

Cash paid for goods and services

Cash paid for interest, fee and commisions

Net increase in currency deposits receivable and pledged
deposits receivable

Net decrease in currency deposits payable and pledged
deposit payable

Net decrease from disposal of financial assets relating to
risk management business

Net increase in restricted monetary funds

Cash paid to and for employees

Cash paid for general and administrative expenses

Payments of various taxes

Cash paid for other operating activities VI, 55

657,523,377.30
253,767.14

550,357,012.52

12,580,011.74
13,547,483.10
92,120,423.38
15,082,227.04
35,993,271.36
66,566,387.57

573,109,590.10
553,401.20

1,703,480,533.49

3,666,373.17
799,781.78
65,807,424.75
26,871,793.38
8,314,106.80
21,028,241.55

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities

1,444,023,961.15

2,403,631,246.22

Net cash flow from operating activities

288,911,060.33

661,992,415.24

2021 Interim Report 51



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

January-June 2021

January-June 2020

Cash flow from investing activities:

Cash received from disposal of investments

Cash received from investment income

Cash received from disposal of associates

Cash received from dividend distrubution from associates

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Other cash received relating to investing activities

1,503,951,603.66
151,070.08

8,970.15

1,601,637,123.54
9,824,169.92

18,602.87

Subtotal of cash inflows form investing activities

1,504,111,643.89

1,611,479,896.33

Cash paid for investment

Cash paid for acquistion of fixed assets, intangible assets
and other long-term assets

Cash paid for investment on associates

Other cash paid for relating to investing activities

1,554,147,676.20

238,644,868.25

2,025,804,064.30

5,062,989.89

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

1,792,792,544.45

2,030,867,054.19

Net cash flow from investing activities

-288,680,900.56

-419,387,157.86
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

January-June 2021

January-June 2020

Cash flow from financing activities:

Cash received from introducing investment

Cash received from borrowings

Net cash received from sales of repurchase business
Other cash received relating to financing activities

199,497,972.00
-2,327,824.39

82,461,870.85

Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities

197,170,147.61

82,461,870.85

Cash paid for repayment of debts
Cash paid for distribution of dividend and profit or
repayment of interest
Cash paid for repayment of principal and interest
of lease liabilities
Other cash paid relating to financial activities VI, 55

10,995,430.00

47,061,676.08

7,412,749.91
754,716.98

11,362,217.85
2,962,071.42

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities

66,224,572.97

14,324,289.27

Net cash flow from financing activities

130,945,574.64

68,137,581.58

. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on cash

and cash equivalent

-2,508,868.81

4,348,399.35

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Add: Beginning balance of cash and cash equivalents

128,666,865.60
2,854,855,864.32

315,091,238.31
2,373,190,813.90

VI.

Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents VI, 55

2,983,522,729.92

2,688,282,052.21

Zhou Jianqiu
Legal Representative:

Zhou Jianqiu

The person in charge of accounting affairs:

Chen Rongping

The head of the accounting department:
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Statement of Cash Flows of the Parent Company

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

Item Note January-June 2021 January-June 2020

. Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of
services

Cash received from interest, fees and commissions 148,116,800.61 95,872,791.75

Net decrease in currency deposits receivable and
pledged deposits receivable

Net increase in currency deposits payable and pledged
deposits payable 810,909,252.76 2,368,169,903.27

Net decrease in restricted monetary funds

Net decrease in term deposits with original maturity
over three months

Cash received from other operating activities 2,859,682.25 13,562,683.31
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities 961,885,735.62 2,477,605,378.33
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid for interest, fee and commisions 253,767.14 553,401.20
Net increase in currency deposits receivable

and pledged deposits receivable 555,117,053.99 1,690,176,163.09

Net decrease in currency deposits payable and pledged
deposit payable

Net decrease from disposal of financial assets relating to
risk management business

Net increase in restricted monetary funds 8,915,463.59 1,725.08
Cash paid to and for employees 80,553,248.87 57,631,909.54
Cash paid for general and administrative expenses 11,740,769.38 21,524,593.65
Payments of various taxes 34,833,720.79 7,392,456.44
Cash paid for other operating activities 41,310,616.96 6,572,072.32
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities 732,724,640.72 1,783,852,321.32
Net cash flow from operating activities 229,161,094.90 693,753,057.01
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Statement of Cash Flows of the Parent Company (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

Item Note January-June 2021 January-June 2020

Cash flow from investing activities:

Cash received from disposal of investments

Cash received from investment income

Cash received from disposal of associates

Cash received from dividend distrubution from associates

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Other cash received relating to investing activities

1,477,734,658.10
6,744,955.77

8,970.15

1,476,768,400.84
6,546,879.22

18,602.86

Subtotal of cash inflows form investing activities

1,484,488,584.02

1,483,333,882.92

Cash paid for investment

Cash paid for acquistion of fixed assets, intangible assets
and other long-term assets

Cash paid for investment on associates

Other cash paid for relating to investing activities

1,487,009,361.30

192,990,062.09

1,823,867,811.96

4,803,847.32

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

1,679,999,423.39

1,828,671,659.28

Net cash flow from investing activities

-195,510,839.37

-345,337,776.36
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Statement of Cash Flows of the Parent Company (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

Item

January-June 2021

January-June 2020

Cash flow from financing activities:

Cash received from introducing investment

Cash received from borrowings

Net cash received from sales of repurchase business
Other cash received relating to financing activities

117,037,680.00
-705,620.11

67,234,937.08

Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities

116,332,059.89

67,234,937.08

Cash paid for repayment of debts

Cash paid for distribution of dividend and profit or
repayment of interest

Cash paid for repayment of principal and interest
of lease liabilities

Other cash paid relating to financial activities

7,802,512.00

47,061,676.08

6,554,785.78
754,716.98

10,428,071.47
2,910,003.63

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities

62,173,690.84

13,338,075.10

Net cash flow from financing activities

54,158,369.05

53,896,861.98

IV. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on cash
and cash equivalent -626,278.96 1,636,631.85
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 87,182,345.62 403,948,774.48
Add: Beginning balance of cash and cash equivalents 2,794,025,651.56 2,204,931,512.87
VI. Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents 2,881,207,997.18 2,608,880,287.35
Zhou Jianqiu Zhou Jianqiu Chen Rongping

Legal Representative:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owners' Equity

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

January-June 2021

Equity attributable to owners of the parent company

Other Minority
Less: Treasury  comprehensive General risk Retained  shareholders'  Total owners'
Paid-in capital  Capital reserve shares income  Surplus reserves reserve earnings equity equity

I, Ending balance of last year 907,000,000.00  533,124,529.52 - 369296407 5842631446 8430589183 67,503,955.76 1,646,667,727.50
Add: Changes in accounting policies -
Correction of previous error -

Other M8 371.877.91 -
I1. Opening balance of the current year |  907,000,000.00  533,124,529.52 - 332108616 5842631446 8430589183 67,132,077.85 1,646,667,721.50
[Il.Increase/decrease of the current

period (loss denoted by ") - - - -1,710,504.14 - - -48,562.31 -1,759,066.45

(I Total comprehensive income -,710,504.14 45,301,437.69 43,590,933.55

(1) Owners' capital injected and reduced - - -
1. Ordinary shares invested by owners -
2. Capital invested by holders of other
equity instruments -
3. Amounts of share-based payments
included in owners' equity -
4. Others -
(1) Profit distribution - - - - -45,350,000.00 -45,350,000.00
1. Withdrawl of surplus reserve - - - -
2. Withdraw of general risk provisions| - -
3. Distribution to owners -45,350,000.00 45,350,000.00
4. Others -
(V) Internal carryover of owners” equity - - - - -
1. Transfer of capital reserves info
paid-in capital (or share capital) -
2. Transfer of surplus resenves into
paid-in capital {or share capital) -
3. Surplus reserves for making up
[osses -
4. Cany-Forward of Retained Earnings
by Changes in Defined Benefit Plan
5. Other comprehensive income
transferred to retained earings
8. Qthers -
(V)Others -

IV.Ending balance of the current period |  907,000,000.00 533,124,592 - 503159030 5842631446 8430589183 67,083,51554 1,644,908,661.05
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Consolidated

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co.,

Statement of Changes in Owners' Equity (Continued)

Ltd. Unit: RMB

January-June 2020

Equity attributable to owners of the parent company

Other Minority
Less: Treasury  comprehensive General risk Retained shareholders'  Total owners'

Paid-in capital  Capital reserve shares income  Surplus reserves reserve earnings equity equit

y

I. Ending balance of last year
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of previous error
Other

907,000,000 533,124,529.52 - 5859775.20 5048360559 7636318296  26,136,918.24 1,598,968,011.5

1

I1. Opening balance of the current year

907,000000.00  533,124,529.52 - 5859775.00 5048360559 7636318296  26,136,918.24 1,598,968,011.5

1

IIlIncrease/decrease of the current
period (loss denoted by ")
(| Total comprehensive income
(1) Owners' capital injected and reduced
1. Ordinary shares invested by owners
2. Capital invested by holders of other
equity instruments
3. Amounts of share-based payments
included in owners' equity
4. Others
(IProfit distribution
1. Withdrawl of surplus reserve
2. Withdraw of general risk provisions
3. Distribution to owners
4. Others
(V)internal carmyover of owners' equity
1. Transfer of capital reserves info
naid-in capital (or share capital)
2. Transfer of surplus resenves into
naid-n capital (or share capital)
3. Surplus reserves for making up
losses
4. Cany-Forward of Retained Earnings
by Changes in Defined Benefit Plan
5. Other comprehensive income
transferred to retained eamings
8. Others
(V)Others

- - - 3,301,68041 - - SITT0413 37,819,384.5
3,301,68041 43587,704.13 46,889,384.5

- - - - -9,070,000.00 -9,070,000.0

-9,070,000.00 -9,070,000.0

4
4

0
0

IV.Ending balance of the current period

907,00000000  533,124,529.52 - 9107145561 5048360559 7636318296  60,654,62237 1,636,787,39.05

Zhou Jianqiu
Legal Representative:
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Zhou Jianqiu Chen Rongping
The person in charge of accounting affairs: The head of the accounting department:



Statement of Changes in owners’ Equity of the Parent Company

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

Unit: RMB

Paid-in capital

Capital reserve

Less: Treasury
shares income

January-June 2021

Other
comprehensive General risk

Surplus reserves reserve

Retained
garnings

Total owners'
equity

I, Ending balance of fast year
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of previous error
Other

907,000,000.00

526,722,489.33

- 180128 5842631446 84,305,891.83

3181191

1124511575

318191

1,653,328,010.09

I1. Opening balance of the current year

907,000,000.00

526,722,489.33

- 7663 5842631446 8430589183

76,873,231.84

1,653,328,010.09

IIlIncrease/decrease of the current period
(loss denoted by "")
(1) Total comprehensive income
(1) Owners' capital injected and reduced
1. Ordinary shares invested by owners
2. Capital invested by holders of other equity instruments
3. Amounts of share-based payments included in owners'
equity
4. Others
(1 profit distribution
1. Withdrawl of surplus reserve
2. Withdraw! of general risk provisions
3. Distribution to owners
4. Others
(V) Internal carryover of owners” equity
1. Transfer of capital reserves into paid-i capital
(or share capital)
2. Transfer of surplus resenves into paid-in capital
(or share capital)
3. Surplus reserves for making up losses
4. Camy-Forward of Retained Eamings by Changes
in Defined Benefit Plan
5. Other comprehensive income transferred to
retained earnings
6. Others
(V)Others

- 376 - -
4,76

-2,821,780.62
42,528.219.38

-45,350,000.00

-45,350,000.00

-2,821,789.38
4,528.210.62

-45,350,000.00
-45,350,000.00

V.Ending balance of the current period

907,000,000.00

526,722,489.33

- 6787 5842631446 8430589183

14,051451.2

1,650,506,220.1
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Statement of Changes in owners' Equity of the Parent Company (Continued)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

Paid-in capital

Less: Treasury
Capital reserve shares

January-June 2020

Other
comprehensive General risk Retained
income  Surplus reserves reserve earnings

Total owners'
equity

I, Ending balance of last year 907,000,000.00
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of previous error
Other

526,122,489.33 -

SAA58656 5048360559 763631829 22,773 44481

1,582,798,136.13

I1. Opening balance of the current year 907,000,000.00

516,722,489.33 -

S4458056 5048360559 763631829% 2277344481

1,582,798,136.13

IIlIncrease/decrease of the current period
(loss denoted by ) -
(| Total comprehensive income
(1) Owners' capital njected and reduced -
1. Ordinary shares invested by owners
2. Capital invested by holders of other equity instruments
3. Amounts of share-based payments included in owners'
equity
4. Others
(I Profit distribution -
1. Withdrawl of surplus reserve
2. Withdraw! of general risk provisions
3. Distribution to owners
4. Others
(Viinternal carryover of owners' equity -
1. Transfer of capital reserves into paid-i capital
(or share capital)
2. Transfer of surplus reserves into paid-in capital
(or share capital)
3. Surplus reserves for making up losses
4, Camy-Forward of Retained Earnings by Changes in
Defined Benefit Plan
5. Other comprehensive income transferred to
retained earnings
8. Others
(V)Others

131,626.75 - - 3238475864
131,626.75 41454 758.64

- - 9,070,000

-9,070,000.00

32,516,385.39
41586,385.39

-9,070,000.00
-9,070,000.00

IV.Ending balance of the current period 907,000,000.00

516,722,489.33 -

41295981 5048360559 7636318296 55,158,203.45

161531452152

Zhou Jianqiu Zhou Jianqiu

Legal Representative: The person in charge of accounting affairs:
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The head of the accounting department:



Notes to the financial statements

(Unless otherwise specified, notes to the financial statements are expressed in RMB)

General information of the Company

Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a joint stock company with
limited liability with registered address at No. 50, Zhonghua Road, Nanjing, the PRC. The Company has a registered
capital of RMB907 million and legal representative of Zhou Jiangiu. The Company’s unified social credit code is
91320000100022362N, and its futures business permit number is 30870000. The Company’s predecessor was
Jiangsu Jinling Futures Brokerage Company Limited (JL#k & EHIE &L L BB A 7)), a company established in July
1995.

In December 1999, the Company changed its name to Jiangsu Holly Futures Brokerage Company Limited ( JT#&54 %
B &4 AR AR ) (“Jiangsu Holly”) from Jiangsu Jinling Futures Brokerage Company Limited (JT# &S HR
A 7]) on 14 December 1999. Its original registered capital was RMB30 million, of which Jiangsu Holly Corporation
(T ERBLERM B2 7]) (formerly known as Jiangsu Crafts Import & Export Trading Group Co., Ltd. (JT&%& T2 %7
EHOEERMBRZAT)) contributed RMB28.2 million, representing 94% of the registered capital; Jiangsu Holly
International Logistics Corporation (/L& 5AZ BB ¥R AR 25 ) (formerly known as Jiangsu Pengcheng International
Storage & Transportation Company Limited (VT &k l552 BIFR @ BR A )) contributed RMB1.8 million, representing
6% of the registered capital.

In 2001, Jiangsu Holly Corporation transferred 48% of its equity interest in Jiangsu Holly to Jiangsu Holly
International Group Investment Management Company Limited (/T#RsA¥BIBREEIRE BEIEBER QA ) in accordance
with a resolution passed at a general meeting of Jiangsu Holly and a relevant equity transfer agreement. Upon the
equity transfer, Jiangsu Holly International Group Investment Management Company Limited contributed RMB14.4
million, representing 48% of the registered capital; Jiangsu Holly Corporation contributed RMB13.8 million,
representing 46% of the registered capital; Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation contributed RMB1.8
million, representing 6% of the registered capital.

In 2006, in accordance with a resolution passed at a general meeting of Jiangsu Holly, its paid-in capital increased
by RMB8 million through transfer of retained earnings, and its registered capital changed to RMB38 million, of
which Jiangsu Holly International Group Investment Management Company Limited contributed RMB18.24 million,
representing 48% of the registered capital; Jiangsu Holly Corporation contributed RMB17.48 million, representing
46% of the registered capital; Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation contributed RMB2.28 million,
representing 6% of the registered capital.
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General information of the Company (continued)

In 2007, in accordance with a resolution passed at a general meeting of the Company, the registered capital
increased by RMB12 million and was changed to RMB50 million, of which Jiangsu Holly International Group
Investment Management Company Limited contributed RMB21,435,000, representing 42.87% of the registered
capital; Jiangsu Holly Corporation contributed RMB21,435,000, representing 42.87% of the registered capital,
Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation contributed RMB2.28 million, representing 4.56% of the registered
capital; Jiangsu Hongrui Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (VL& 5AIREHXBIZIRE BB A7) contributed RMB2.45 million,
representing 4.90% of the registered capital; Shanghai Mingda Industrial (Group) Company Limited ( /88 A& %%
) AR AF]) contributed RMB2.4 million, representing 4.80% of the registered capital.

In 2008, in accordance with a resolution passed at a general meeting of Jiangsu Holly, its registered capital increased
by RMB58 million and was changed to RMB108 million. The shareholding percentage of each shareholder remained
unchanged.

In 2009, in accordance with a resolution passed at a general meeting of Jiangsu Holly, its registered capital increased
by RMB30 million and was changed to RMB138 million, of which Jiangsu Holly International Group Investment
Management Company Limited contributed RMB61,299,600, representing 44.42% of the registered capital;
Jiangsu Holly Corporation contributed RMB61,299,600, representing 44.42% of the registered capital; Jiangsu Holly
International Logistics Corporation contributed RMB4,924,800, representing 3.57% of the registered capital; Jiangsu
Hongrui Venture Capital Co., Ltd. contributed RMB5,292,000, representing 3.83% of the registered capital; Shanghai
Mingda Industrial (Group) Company Limited contributed RMB5,184,000, representing 3.76% of the registered
capital.

On 25 April 2011, in accordance with a resolution passed at a general meeting of Jiangsu Holly, its registered capital
increased by RMB242 million and changed to RMB380 million, of which Jiangsu Holly International Group Investment
Management Company Limited contributed RMB82.65 million, representing 21.75% of the registered capital,
Jiangsu Holly Corporation contributed RMB82.65 million, representing 21.75% of the registered capital; Jiangsu Holly
International Logistics Corporation contributed RMB4,924,800, representing 1.30% of the registered capital; Jiangsu
Hongrui Venture Capital Co., Ltd. contributed RMB5,292,000, representing 1.39% of the registered capital; Shanghai
Mingda Industrial (Group) Company Limited contributed RMB5,184,000, representing 1.36% of the registered capital;
Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Group Co., Ltd. ((TE A S IERERB AR A F]) ("SOHO Holdings”) (formerly known as
Jiangsu Silk Group Company Limited (JT# & 4 4% E B R A F])) contributed RMB81,081,200, representing 21.34%
of the registered capital; Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd. (T &k cABRE B R 7)) contributed RMB80,218,000,
representing 21.11% of the registered capital; Jiangsu High Hope International Group Co., Ltd. (LZRIEGEIFR £ E A
fR 2 7] ) contributed RMB38 million, representing 10.00% of the registered capital.
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General information of the Company (continued)

On 20 August 2012, in accordance with the Approval for Change of Certain State-owned Equity Holders of Jiangsu
Holly Futures Company Limited (Su Guo Zi Fu [2012] No. 78) issued by the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Jiangsu Provincial People’s Government, the 21.75% equity interest in Jiangsu Holly
held by Jiangsu Holly International Group Investment Management Company Limited was transferred to SOHO
Holdings. The procedures for industrial and commercial change registration of Jiangsu Holly were completed on 21
November 2012, following which SOHO Holdings held 43.09% equity interest in Jiangsu Holly.

In November 2012, the shareholders of Jiangsu Holly entered into the Promoters’ Agreement in relation to the
Establishment of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. ( A BIE MR B2 7] ), and Jiangsu Holly was converted into Holly Futures
Co., Ltd. Pursuant to the Promoters’ Agreement, the shareholders of Jiangsu Holly made capital contribution through
its adjusted audited net assets of RMB680,000,000.00. It has a total of 680,000,000 shares each with a nominal
value of RMB1, all of which ordinary shares. The excess of the remaining net assets over the total share capital in the
amount of RMB350,124,231.10 was included in “Capital reserve — Share premium”.

Following the conversion, the share capital of the Company was 680,000,000 shares, of which SOHO Holdings held
292,992,674 shares, representing 43.09% of the total share capital; Jiangsu Holly Corporation held 147,900,000
shares, representing 21.75% of the total share capital; Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd. held 143,548,000 shares,
representing 21.11% of the total share capital; Jiangsu High Hope International Group Co., Ltd. held 68,000,000
shares, representing 10.00% of the total share capital; Jiangsu Hongrui Venture Capital Co., Ltd. held 9,469,895
shares, representing 1.39% of the total share capital; Shanghai Mingda Industrial (Group) Company Limited held
9,276,631 shares, representing 1.36% of the total share capital; Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation
held 8,812,800 shares, representing 1.30% of the total share capital.

On 18 August 2015, in accordance with the Approval for the Issue of Overseas Listed Foreign Shares by Holly
Futures Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2015] No. 1963) issued by the CSRC, the Company issued no more than
261,050,000 overseas listed foreign shares each with a nominal value of RMB1, all of which ordinary shares. On
30 December 2015, the overseas issued shares of the Company became listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, with stock name of Holly Futures and stock code of 03678. In accordance with the Approval
for the Transfer of State-owned Shares of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. issued by the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Council (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2015] No. 411), upon completion of
the issue, the state-owned shareholders, being SOHO Holdings, Jiangsu High Hope International Group Co., Ltd.,
Jiangsu Hongrui Venture Capital Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation, transferred part
of their shares to the National Council for Social Security Fund, totaling 22,700,000 shares. The Company offered
249,700,000 H shares (including the shares disposed of by the state-owned shareholders) each with a nominal value
of RMB1 at a price of HK$2.43 per share in the global public offering, raising a total of HK$607 million. Upon the
listing, the Company had a total share capital of 907,000,000 shares, including 249,700,000 shares (H shares) held
by the public shareholders, representing 27.53% of its total share capital.

The Company is headquartered in Nanjing. As of 30 June 2021, it had a total of 6 sub-branches and 39 branches in
the PRC. The scope of business of the Company is commodity futures brokerage, financial futures brokerage, futures
investment consulting, asset management, fund sales (approvals from competent authorities shall be obtained for the
operation of the activities requiring approval in accordance with the laws).
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Scope of consolidated financial statements

The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements included directly or indirectly controlled subsidiaries and structured
entities.

For details, please refer to the relevant content of “Note VII. Changes in the scope of consolidated statements” and
“Note VIII. Interests in other entities”.

Basis for preparation of financial statements

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the going-concern basis and transactions and events
actually occurred in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of

Finance and relevant provisions and based on the accounting policies and estimates stated in “Note IV. Significant
accounting policies and accounting estimates”.

Going concern

The Group is able to continue as a going concern for at least the next 12 months from the end of the Reporting
Period, and there is no material matters affecting its operation as a going concern.

Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates

Statement of compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, and present truly and completely the financial position, operating results and cash
flows of the Company.

Accounting year

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December of each calendar year.
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IV. Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (continued)

(M

Operating cycle

The Group adopts 12 months as an operating cycle, which commences on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Functional currency

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and these financial statements are presented in Renminbi. Functional
currency is determined by the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group on the basis of the currency in which major
income and costs are denominated and settled. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries have functional currencies that are
different from the Company’s functional currency. In the preparation of these financial statements, their financial
statements in foreign currency have been translated based on the accounting policy set out in Note IV.8.

Accounting methods for business combination under common control and not
under common control

Business combination under common control

A business combination under common control is a business combination in which all of the combining entities are
ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the combination, and that control is not
transitory.

Assets and liabilities acquired by the company through a business combination under common control shall be
measured at carrying amounts attributable to the owner’s equity of acquiree included in the consolidated financial
statements of the ultimate controlling party at the date of combination. The difference between the carrying amount
of the net assets acquired and the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination (or total nominal
value of the issued shares) shall be adjusted to the capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not sufficient to offset, any
excess amount shall be adjusted against retained earnings.

The auditing and appraisal fees, legal, legal and consulting fees and other direct related expenses incurred by the
company for business combination under common control are charged to the profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred. Handling fees, commissions and other expenses paid for issuance of bonds or other liabilities
committed in relation to business combination shall be charged to the initial measuring value of the bonds and other
liabilities issued. Handling fees, commissions and other expenses paid for issuance of equity securities in relation to
business combination shall be offset against the premium from equity securities and whereas such amount is not
sufficient to offset by premium, the excess shall be adjusted against retained earnings.

If the acquiree becomes a subsidiary of the company after business combination under common control, the company
shall prepare the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement and consolidated cash flow statement
as at the date of combination. If the accounting policies adopted by the acquiree are inconsistent with those of the
company, the relevant items of the financial statements of the acquiree shall be adjusted in accordance with the
accounting policies of the company on the date of combination and measured at the adjusted carrying amounts.
The consolidated income statement will include the incomes, expenses and profits of all parties involving in the
combination from the beginning of the period in which such combination happens to the date of combination. The
net profit of the acquiree prior to the combination will be reflected as a separate item in the consolidated income
statement. The consolidated cash flow statement will include the cash flows of all parties involving in the combination
from the beginning of the period in which such combination happens to the date of combination.
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IV. Significant accounting policies and accounting
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Accounting methods for business combination under common control and not
under common control (continued)

Business combination not under common control

A business combination not under common control is a business combination in which all of the combining entities
are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the combination.

For business combination not under common control, the assets paid and liabilities incurred or committed as a
consideration of business combination by the company was measured at fair value on the date of acquisition and
the difference between the fair value and its carrying value shall be included in the profit or loss for the period.
Where the cost of combination is higher than the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired from the acquiree
in business combination, the acquirer shall recognize such difference as goodwill. Where the cost of combination is
less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired from the acquiree in business combination, the acquirer
shall recognize such difference in the profit or loss for the period.

The auditing, legal, appraisal and consulting and other agency fees and related management fees incurred by the
company for business combination not under common control are charged to the profit or loss during the period
in which they are incurred; the transaction fees related to the issuance of equity securities or debt securities as the
consideration of business combination are charged to the initial measuring value of equity securities or debt securities
issued.

If the acquiree becomes a subsidiary of the company after business combination not under common control, the
company shall establish a record book that states the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired in business combination on the date of acquisition. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of the subsidiaries shall be restated based on the fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised on the date of acquisition.
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Preparation method of consolidated financial statements

Determination principles of consolidation scope

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control. Control exists when the investor has power over
the investee; and has exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee’s activities and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Accounting methods of consolidated financial statements

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard
for Business Enterprises No.33 — Consolidated Financial Statements and relevant regulations. All material intra-
group transactions and balance within the scope of consolidation have been eliminated. The parts of subsidiaries’
shareholders’ equity not attributable to the parent company are regarded as “non-controlling interests” and stated
separately in shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements. The share of the subsidiary’s current net
profit or loss attributable to non-controlling interests is stated under the item of “profit or loss attributable to non-
controlling interests” under the item of net profits in the consolidated income statement. When the amount of
loss attributable to the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary exceeds the non-controlling interests’ share of the
opening shareholders’ equity of the subsidiary, the excess is still allocated against the non-controlling interests.

When the accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of the Company, the Company makes necessary
adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based on the Company’s accounting policies in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

For subsidiaries acquired through a business combination not under common control, in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, adjustments shall be made to their individual financial statements based on the fair values of
the identifiable net assets at the acquisition date; for subsidiaries acquired through a business combination under
common control, in preparing the consolidated financial statements, adjustments shall be made to the opening
balance of the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding items of the comparative statements, as if
the reporting entities after the combination had existed from the date when the combining entities first came under
control of the ultimate controlling party.

Acquisition of minority interests or disposal of part of the equity interest in a subsidiary that does not result in the
loss of control over the subsidiary is accounted for as equity transaction. The carrying amounts of the Company’s
interests and minority interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. The
difference between the amount by which the minority interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, the
excess are adjusted against retained earnings.

When the Company loses control over a subsidiary due to disposal of certain equity interest or other reasons,
any retained interest is re-measured at its fair value at the date when control is lost. The difference between the
aggregate of the consideration received on disposal and the fair value of any retained interest and the share of the
former subsidiary’s net assets cumulatively calculated from the acquisition date according to the original proportion
of ownership interest is recognised as investment income in the period in which control is lost. Other comprehensive
income associated with investment in the former subsidiary is reclassified as investment income in the period in which
control is lost.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits that can be readily withdrawn on demand, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency transactions and foreign currency translation

The Company adopts an independent accounting system to record foreign currency transactions. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded on the original currency respectively at the dates of the transactions. On the
balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items and foreign currency non-monetary items are treated separately:
foreign currency monetary items are translated at the spot exchange rate on the balance sheet data (the central parity
of the RMB exchange rate announced by the People’s Bank of China), and foreign currency non-monetary items are
translated at the spot exchange rate on the transaction date, and the resulting exchange difference is included in the
profit and loss for the current period.

For foreign operations, the Group translates all amounts of functional currencies into RMB in preparing the financial
statements as follows: for assets and liabilities in the balance sheet, spot exchange rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date are used for translation, while, for shareholders’ equity, spot exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates are adopted for items other than “retained earnings”. For incomes and expenses in the income statement, the
spot exchange rates or its approximate rate prevailing on the transaction dates are used for translation. The resulting
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income as unrealized exchange gains and losses and are separately
stated under the shareholders’ equity item in the consolidated statement.

Branch capital management and transaction clearing principles

The capital of branches of the Company is allocated by the headquarters, and the transactions with branch customers
are settled at the headquarters. The branches shall carry out transaction order handling and confirmation of
settlement order with customers as required.

Customer futures deposits

Classification of customer futures deposits

The Company's customer futures deposits include currency deposits and pledged deposits. Currency deposits are
the future deposits in the form of currency received by the Company for execution of transactions on behalf of
customers. Pledged deposits are the negotiable securities received by the Company for execution of transactions on
behalf of customers, which are used to offset the futures deposits
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Customer futures deposits (continued)

Customer futures deposits management

The Company’s customer futures deposits are managed in a way that they are deposited in and transferred to
designated accounts, operate independently, and are strictly separated from the self-owned funds of the Company.

The Company establishes separate records for customer futures deposits and conducts daily settlement without
liabilities. It settles the gains or losses on customers’ futures transactions according to the daily mark-to-market
system, and calculates transaction fees based on the fee rate agreed with customers and daily trading volume (or
trading value) of customers.

Accounting for customer futures deposits
Customer currency deposits

When the Company accepts customer orders, receives and deposits currency deposits into designated bank
accounts, the Company recognises them as monetary funds and currency deposits payable. When the Company
accepts customer orders and carries out futures transactions, the Company recognises currency deposits receivable
determined by futures exchanges and reduces monetary funds accordingly. In clearing with customers, if customers’
futures contracts on that day are profitable, the Company increases currency deposits receivable and currency
deposits payable after deducting the commissions to be charged to customers based on the amount of profit stated
in the settlement documents issued by futures settlement institutions. If customers’ futures contracts on that day
are making loss, the Company reduces currency deposits receivable and currency deposits payable after adding the
commissions to be charged to customers based on the amount of loss stated in the settlement documents issued by
futures settlement institutions.

Pledged deposits of customers

When the Company submits negotiable securities on behalf of customers to futures exchanges as deposits, it
recognises pledged deposits receivable and pledged deposits payable based on the amount of deposits confirmed by
futures exchanges. When the Company carries out transactions on behalf of customers through futures exchanges,
the accounting treatment is the same as that for customer currency deposits. In case of changes in the value of
negotiable securities, futures exchanges will adjust the confirmed deposits amount, and the Company will increase
or reduce pledged deposits receivable and pledged deposits payable accordingly. When futures exchanges return
negotiable securities to customers, the Company reduces pledged deposits receivable and pledged deposits payable
based on the deposits amount confirmed by the futures exchanges.
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Collateral management

The Company accepts standard warehouse receipts registered with exchanges as collaterals. The Company timely
completes pledge procedures for collaterals provided by customers in accordance with the requirements of futures
exchanges. If a customer incurs loss and fails to meet margin call in a timely manner, the Company will compulsorily
liquidate its position as agreed and dispose of the collateral in accordance with the law. The proceeds from collateral
disposal will be utilised to compensate for the loss, and any remaining amount will be returned to customers

Accounting for physical settlement

Upon expiry of futures contracts, the Company carries out physical settlement in accordance with the rules and
procedures set by each futures exchange and conducts accounting based on the incurred amount of purchase
settlement and sale settlement.

Inventories

Inventories include spot commodities and are initially measured at cost. Cost of inventories comprises costs of
purchase and other expenditure incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The
actual cost of issued inventories is measured using the first-in first-out method.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale and
relevant taxes. The net realisable value of the inventory held to satisfy sales or service contracts is measured based on
the contract price, to the extent of the quantities specified in sales contracts, and the excess portion of inventories
is measured based on general selling prices. Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of each item of
inventories is recognised as a provision for obsolete inventories, and is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
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Long-term equity investments

Investment cost of long-term equity

Long-term equity investments acquired through business combination

The initial cost of long-term equity investment acquired through business combination involving entities under
common control is the Company’s share of the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s equity at the combination date in
the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party. The difference between the initial investment

cost of the long-term equity investment and the carrying amount of the consideration given is adjusted to the share
premium in the capital reserve, with any excess adjusted to retained earnings.

Long-term equity investments acquired other than through business combination
Long-term equity investment acquired other than through business combination is initially recognised at the amount

of cash paid if the Group acquires the investment by cash. For long-term equity investments acquired through issue
of equity securities, the Group treats the fair value of the equity securities issued as their initial investment cost.

Subsequent measurement and recognition in profit or loss of long-term equity investment

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s separate financial statements, long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using
the cost method for subsequent measurement. Except for cash dividends or profit distributions declared but not yet
distributed that have been included in the price or consideration paid in obtaining the investments, the Company
recognises its share of the cash dividends or profit distributions declared by the investee as investment income for the
current period.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

For the impairment test and provisioning of the investments in subsidiaries, please refer to Note IV. 19.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements, long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in
accordance with the policies described in Note IV.6.
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Long-term equity investments (continued)

Subsequent measurement and recognition in profit loss of long-term equity investment (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group can exert significant influence (see Note 1V.14(3)).

Long-term equity investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method for subsequent measurement,
unless the investments meet the conditions for holding for sale.

The accounting treatments under the equity method adopted by the Group are as follows:

0)

Where the initial cost of a long-term equity investment exceeds the Group's interest in the fair value of the
investee's identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition, the investment is initially recognised at cost. Where
the initial investment cost is less than the Group's interest in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition, the investment is initially recognised at the investor’s share of the fair value
of the investee’s identifiable net assets, and the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

After the acquisition of investment in an associate, the Group recognises its share of the investee’s net profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as investment income or losses and other comprehensive income
respectively, and adjusts the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment accordingly. Once the
investee declares any cash dividends or profit distributions, the carrying amount of the investment is reduced
by the amount attributable to the Group. The Group recognises its share of other changes in owners’ equity
of an associate other than net gains or losses, other comprehensive income or profit distribution (“other
changes in owners’ equity”) in shareholders’ equity, and adjusts the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment accordingly.

In calculating its share of the investee’s net profits or losses, other comprehensive income and other changes
in owners’ equity, the Group recognises investment income and other comprehensive income after making
appropriate adjustments to align the accounting policies or accounting periods with those of the Group
based on the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Unrealised profits
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the associates under the equity method. Unrealised losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are recognised in full if there is evidence that the losses are the relevant
asset impairment losses.
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Long-term equity investments (continued)

Subsequent measurement and recognition in profit loss of long-term equity investment (continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

@ The Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses of the investee after the carrying amount of
the long-term equity investment and any long-term interest that in substance forms part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate is reduced to zero, except to the extent that the Group has an obligation to assume
additional losses. If the associate subsequently reports net profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits has fully covered the share of losses not recognised.

For description of the Group’s impairment testing method and provision for impairment method for its investments in
associates, please refer to Note V. 19.

Criteria for determining the existence of significant influence over an investee

Significant influence refers to the Group’s power to participate in making decisions on the financial and operating
policies of the investee, but not the power to control, or jointly control, the formulation of such policies with other
parties.

Fixed assets

Conditions for recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the Group for use in supply of services or for administrative
purposes with useful lives over one accounting year.

The initial cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price, related taxes, and any attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have different useful lives or provide economic benefits to the Group in
a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised as a
separate fixed asset.

Any subsequent costs including the cost of replacing part of an item of fixed assets are recognised as assets when it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the costs will flow to the Group, and the carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day maintenance of fixed assets are recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation of fixed assets

The cost of a fixed asset, less its estimated residual value and accumulated impairment losses, is depreciated using
the straight-line method over its useful life, unless the fixed asset meets the conditions for holding for sale.

The useful lives, residual value rates and depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are as follows:

Residual
Fixed assets Useful life value ratio Depreciation
Motor vehicles 10 years 5% 9.5%
Office equipment 4-5 years 0%-5% 19%-25%
Electronic equipment 3-5 years 0%-5% 19%-33%

Useful lives, estimated residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed for fixed assets by the Group at least at
each year-end.

Impairment test and provisioning

For the impairment test and provisioning, please refer to Note IV. 19.

Disposal of fixed assets

The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

@ when the fixed assets is held for disposal; or

@ when no future economic benefit is expected to be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed asset are determined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note IV.19). For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less estimated
residual value and accumulated impairment losses is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful
life, unless the intangible asset meets the conditions for holding for sale.

The respective amortisation periods for intangible assets are as follows:

Amortisation

Intangible assets period

Software 2 — 4 years

Customer relationship 3.5 years
Goodwill

The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost of acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under a business combination not involving entities under common control.

Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment provision (see Note
IV.19). On disposal of an asset group or a set of asset groups, any attributable goodwill is written off and included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Financial instruments

The financial instruments of the Group include monetary funds, currency deposits receivable, financial assets held
for trading, derivative financial assets, financial assets held under resale agreements, receivables, other receivables,
currency deposits payable, futures investors protection funds payable, financial liabilities held for trading, derivative
financial liabilities, employee benefits payable, other payables and share capital, etc.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Recognition and initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) and financial liability is
measured at fair value on initial recognition. For financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, any related directly attributable transaction costs are charged to profit or loss; for other categories of financial
assets and financial liabilities, any related directly attributable transaction costs are included in the